
PUBLIC COPY 
 

RROOSSSSMMOOOORR 
COMMUNITY  SERVICES DISTRICT 

   
 

Regular Meeting of the Board 
Agenda Package 

 
July 10, 2012 

 



A AGENDA 07.10.12 

B 
   D-1– Report of the Consulting General Manager Re: 
   Governance 

C    D-2–Report of the Public Works/CIP Committee 

D    E-1a.– Minutes: Regular Board Meeting of June 12, 2012 

E    E-1b.– Minutes: Special Board Meeting of June 7, 2012 

 F     E-1c.– Minutes: Special Board Meeting of June 21, 2012 

G    E-2– May 2012 Revenue & Expenditure Report 

H    F-1 – Adoption of FY 2012-2013 Final Budget 

 I      G-1 – Reso. No 12-07-10-01 Approving And Adopting The 
   Annual Appropriations Limit For FY 2012-2013 

J    G-2 – Reso. No. 12-07-10-02 Establishing The Annual Budget  
   Revenue  And Expenditures Total Amount For FY 2012-2013 

K    H-1 – CSDA Board Elections 

L    H-2– Extended Term Agreement/Tennis Instruction:Rossmoor 
   Park- Fernando Molina 

M    H-3–Amended Street Sweeping Agreement: R.F. Dickson,LLC 

N    H-4 – Authorize General Manager to Hire Temporary Assistant 
   Recreation 
    

O    H-5–Authorize General Manager to Execute Agreement w/ 
   West Coast Electric For Electrical Repairs-Auditorium 

P    H-6–2nd Reading to Proposed Policies For Use of District 
   Facilities 

Q    H-7–Employment Agreement-General Counsel, Jenkins &  
   Hogin, LLP. 

R     
 

S  

T  

U  

V  

W  

Y  

Z  

 

TABLE OF 
CONTENTS 



1 

AGENDA 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

 REGULAR MEETING 
 

RUSH PARK 
3021 Blume Drive 

Rossmoor, California 
 

Tuesday, July 10, 2012 
 

7:00 p.m. 
 

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
A. ORGANIZATION 
  
 1. CALL TO ORDER:  7:00 p.m. 
 
 2. ROLL CALL:   Directors Casey, Kahlert, Maynard, Rips 
     President Coletta 
      

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
4. PRESENTATIONS-None  

 
B. ADDITIONS TO AGENDA – None 
 In accordance with Section 54954 of the Government Code (Brown Act), action may  
 be taken on items not on the agenda, which was distributed, if: 
 
  A majority of the Board determines by formal vote that an emergency exists 
  per Section 54956.5 (for example, work stoppage or crippling disaster which 
  severely impairs public health and/or safety); or 
 
  Two-thirds (2/3) of the Board formally votes or, if less than 2/3 of members 
  are present, all of the Board members present vote, that there is a need to  
  take immediate action, which arose after the agenda was posted. 
 
C. PUBLIC FORUM 
 
 Any person may address the Board of Directors at this time upon any subject within 
 the jurisdiction of the Rossmoor Community Services District; however, any matter 
 that requires action may be referred to Staff at the discretion of the Board for a  
 report and action at a subsequent Board meeting. 
 
D. REPORTS TO THE BOARD  
 
 1. REPORT OF THE GENERAL MANAGER RE: GOVERNANCE. 
 
 2. REPORT OF THE PUBLIC WORKS/CIP COMMITTEE. 
  
E.  CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
 1. MINUTES: 

Page 3 of 254



2 

 
  a. Regular Board Meeting of June 12, 2012. 
 

b. Special Board Meeting of June 7, 2012. 
 
c. Special Board Meeting of June 21, 2012. 

 
 2.  MAY REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT. 
  
 Consent items are expected to be routine and non-controversial, to be acted upon by  
 the Board of Directors at one time.  If any Board member requests that an item be 
 removed from the Consent Calendar, it shall be removed by the President so that it 
 may be acted upon separately. 
 
 

F. PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 1. ADOPTION OF FY 2012-2013 FINAL BUDGET  
 
G. RESOLUTIONS 
 
 1. RESOLUTION NO. 12-07-10-01 APPROVING AND ADOPTING THE ANNUAL 
 APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2012-2013. 
 

2. RESOLUTION NO. 12-07-10-02 ESTABLISHING THE ANNUAL BUDGET REVENUE  AND 
EXPENDITURES TOTAL AMOUNT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2012-2013 FOR THE ROSSMOOR 
COMMUNITY  SERVICES DISTRICT. 

 
H.       REGULAR CALENDAR 
 
 1.  CSDA 2012 BOARD ELECTIONS. 
 
 2. EXTENDED TERM AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE TENNIS INSTRUCTION-ROSSMOOR 
 PARK-FERNANDO MOLINA.  
 
 3. AMENDMENT-STREET SWEEPING AGREEMENT R.F. DICKSON, LLC. 
 

4. AUTHORIZE GENERAL MANAGER TO HIRE TEMPORARY ASSISTANT RECREATION 
LEADER. 
 
5. AUTHORIZE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE AGREEMENT WITH WEST COAST 
ELECTRIC FOR ELECTRICAL REPAIRS-AUDITORIUM 
 
6. GIVE SECOND READING TO PROPOSED POLICIES FOR USE OF DISTRICT PROPERTY. 
 
7.  Employment Agreement-General Counsel, Jenkins & Hogin, LLP.  

 
1. GENERAL MANAGER ITEMS   
  

 This part of the Agenda is reserved for the General Manager to provide information  
 to the Board on issues that are not on the Agenda, and/or to inform the Board that  
 specific items may be placed on a future Agenda.  No Board action may be taken on 
 these items that are not on the Agenda 
 

 

Page 4 of 254



3 

 
 
J. BOARD MEMBER ITEMS 
 
 This part of the Agenda is reserved for Board members to discuss issues that are not 
 on the Agenda, and/or to request that specific items be placed on a future Agenda. 
 No Board action may be taken on these items that are not on the Agenda.  
 

K. CLOSED SESSION -None   
 
L. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 It is the intention of the Rossmoor Community Services District to comply with the 
 Americans With Disabilities Act (ADA) in all respects.  If, as an attendee or a  
 participant at this meeting, you will need special assistance beyond what is  
 normally provided, the District will attempt to accommodate you in every  
 reasonable manner. 
 
 
  Please contact the District Office at (562) 430-3707 at least forty-eight (48) hours 
 prior to the meeting to inform us of your particular needs and  to determine if 
 accommodation is feasible.  Please advise us at that time if you will need 
 accommodations to attend or participate in meetings on a regular basis. 

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.5, any writing that: (1) is a public 
record; (2) relates to an agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the 
Board of Directors; and (3) is distributed less than 72 hours prior to that meeting, will 
be made available for public inspection at the time the writing is distributed to the 
Board of Directors. 
  
Any such writing will be available for public inspection at the District offices located 
at 3001 Blume Drive, Rossmoor, CA 90720.  In addition, any such writing may also be 
posted on the District’s web site at www.rossmoor-csd.org. 

Page 5 of 254



Page 6 of 254



 1 

 
ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 
AGENDA ITEM D-1 

 
 
Date: July 10, 2012 
 
To: Honorable Board of Directors 
 
From: Consulting General Manager  
 
Subject: REPORT ON GOVERNANCE 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
Receive the report and provide direction to General Manager on future 
governance initiatives.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
This report is intended to be a comprehensive update on a number of 
activities relating to governance.  
 
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 
 
1. After many months, the District has received an Attorney General 
Opinion regarding the District’s ability to contract for police services 
with the Orange County Sheriffs Department. County Counsel has 
opined that the District could only contract for “enhanced” services, 
but the Sheriff could not withdraw “core” services in favor of a 
contract with the District. The Attorney General Opinion states 
otherwise, in essence giving the District the prerogative to pursue 
such a contract in furtherance of an application to LAFCO for latent 
powers for police services. 
 
2. A second Attorney General Opinion was requested by San 
Bernardino LAFCO which asked if an unincorporated territory of more 
than 150 acres could be broken up into parcels of less than 150 acres 
and be annexed without approval or protest by residents and property 
owners. The opinion stated that such an action was not permissible 
under the law. This opinion basically prevents the annexation of the 
Rossmoor Village shopping district from being divided from 
Rossmoor and annexed by the City of Los Alamitos. 
 

Page 7 of 254



 2 

PUBLIC RECORDS ACT REQUESTS 
 
1. The initial Public Records Act (PRA) was submitted to the County in 
an effort to obtain financial data that would validate that Rossmoor is 
a donor community and not a drain on the County. The request 
prepared by the Harvey Rose Co. was closed out by the County stating 
that County did not possess the records being requested. They did 
state that they would attempt to assist the District, as time permitted. 
 
2. A second PRA was authorized by the Board to be prepared by the 
Harvey Rose Co. in consultation with the law firm of the Kaufman 
Group. A more comprehensive request which mirrored the 
information compiled for the Comprehensive Financial Analysis in 
furtherance of the District’s incorporation attempt. The County was 
reminded that if it could produce financial data in 2008, that it could 
do so again. A reply from the County is pending. 
 
OC GRAND JURY REPORT 
 
1. This matter was discussed at the Board’s Special meeting on June 7, 
2012. The report of the Grand Jury was an attempt to discount and 
discredit the efficiency and cost effectiveness of special districts in 
Orange County. The reaction to the report from special districts has 
been overwhelmingly negative and with expressions of 
disappointment and outrage.  
 
2. The District is required to respond to the Presiding Judge of the 
Superior Court with an indication agreement or disagreement with the 
findings and recommendations of the Grand Jury. Since the District 
disagrees with most, if not all, of the Report, it is nonetheless 
required to provide a timetable for the implementation of those 
recommendations. As a result, the Board has engaged the legal firm of 
Jenkins & Hogin, LLP to advise the District on its legal strategy for the 
District’s formal response. 
 
3. Orange County LAFCO, the California Special Districts Association 
and the Independent Special Districts of Orange have uniformly 
objected to the Report as biased, inaccurate and damaging to the 
reputation of special districts which provide a number of vital 
services to the residents of Orange County.  
 
 ENFORCEMENT OF THE DISTRICT’S TREE POLICY 
 
1. Recently, Orange County Public Works (OCPW) has taken an 
aggressive approach regarding the removal of parkway trees in 

Page 8 of 254



 3 

Rossmoor. Since the inception of the District in 1986, it has been the 
responsibility of the District to plant, trim and remove parkway trees.  
OCPW has now taken the position that the powers of the District do 
not extend to tree removals for reasons of public safety. Although the 
District was granted the powers of Road Commissioner for parkway 
trees, OCPW maintains that this is a shared power and that they are 
the final word on tree removal. 
 
2. The District has met with OCPW and County Counsel to discuss a 
resolution of this dispute. Respective staffs have agreed to work on an 
agreement that would spell out the specific responsibilities of the 
parties. County Counsel, however, stated that any agreement reached 
between the two agencies would require County Board of Supervisors 
approval and that such approval would likely be problematic. As a 
result, the Board has engaged the legal services to the firm of Jenkins 
& Hogin, LLP to assist the District’s regarding the care and 
maintenance of the community’s urban forest.   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
1. Attorney General Opinion re: Ability of the District to Contract for 
‘Core’ Police Services with the Orange County Sheriff. 
 
2. Attorney General Opinion re: Prohibiting the Division of 
Unincorporated Territory into Less than 150 Acres for Purposes of 
Avoiding the Protesting of Annexation.  
 
3. Grand Jury Report “LET THERE BE LIGHT” DRAGGING SPECIAL 
DISTRICTS FROM THE SHADOWS. 
 
4.  Transmittal Letter to the Presiding Judge of the Superior Court. 
 
5.  Response to the Presiding Judge of the Superior Court. 
 
6. Public Records Act Request Letter to Orange County CEO dated May 
29, 2012. 
 
7. Public Records Act Request Comments Letter to Orange County CEO 
date May 30, 2012. 
 
8. Email dated June 4, 2012 from OCPW Stating the County’s Position 
Regarding the Removal of Parkway Trees in Rossmoor. 
 
9. Policy No. 3080 Parkway and Rossmoor Median Tree Maintenance. 

Page 9 of 254



Page 37 of 223Page 10 of 254

ldeering
Text Box
Attachment 1



Page 38 of 223Page 11 of 254



Page 39 of 223Page 12 of 254



Page 40 of 223Page 13 of 254



Page 41 of 223Page 14 of 254



Page 42 of 223Page 15 of 254



Page 43 of 223Page 16 of 254



Page 44 of 223Page 17 of 254

ldeering
Text Box
Attachment 2



Page 45 of 223Page 18 of 254



Page 46 of 223Page 19 of 254



Page 47 of 223Page 20 of 254



Page 48 of 223Page 21 of 254



Page 49 of 223Page 22 of 254



Page 50 of 223Page 23 of 254



Page 51 of 223Page 24 of 254



Page 52 of 223Page 25 of 254



Page 53 of 223Page 26 of 254



Page 54 of 223Page 27 of 254



Page 55 of 223Page 28 of 254



Page 56 of 223Page 29 of 254

ldeering
Text Box
Attachment 3



Page 57 of 223Page 30 of 254



Page 58 of 223Page 31 of 254



Page 59 of 223Page 32 of 254



Page 60 of 223Page 33 of 254



Page 61 of 223Page 34 of 254



Page 62 of 223Page 35 of 254



Page 63 of 223Page 36 of 254



Page 64 of 223Page 37 of 254



Page 65 of 223Page 38 of 254



Page 66 of 223Page 39 of 254



Page 67 of 223Page 40 of 254



Page 68 of 223Page 41 of 254



Page 69 of 223Page 42 of 254



Page 70 of 223Page 43 of 254



Page 71 of 223Page 44 of 254



Page 72 of 223Page 45 of 254



Page 73 of 223Page 46 of 254



Page 74 of 223Page 47 of 254



Page 75 of 223Page 48 of 254



Page 76 of 223Page 49 of 254



Page 77 of 223Page 50 of 254



Page 78 of 223Page 51 of 254



Page 79 of 223Page 52 of 254



Page 80 of 223Page 53 of 254



Page 81 of 223Page 54 of 254



Page 82 of 223Page 55 of 254



Page 83 of 223Page 56 of 254



Page 84 of 223Page 57 of 254



Page 85 of 223Page 58 of 254



Page 86 of 223Page 59 of 254



Page 87 of 223Page 60 of 254



Page 88 of 223Page 61 of 254



Page 89 of 223Page 62 of 254



Page 90 of 223Page 63 of 254



Page 64 of 254

ldeering
Text Box
Attachment 4



Page 65 of 254

ldeering
Text Box
Attachment 5



SUMMARY-page 2 

4. “All taxes for special districts…should be made transparent by specifically showing them separately 
within the 1% property tax bill sent by the County”, “The taxpayer deserves to know where taxes are 
being allocated”. 

Response: Since it is the County that prepares the tax bill, this matter should be addressed to the 
County. Rossmoor’s tax bills do differentiate between property tax, lighting assessment and two bond 
assessments. Moreover, the District prepares an annual budget which specifically allocates revenues to 
distinct expenses for services. The budget process includes a public hearing for the public to comment 
on the District’s budget.  

5. “…all the special districts should provide their constituents with an independent performance audit”. 

Response: A performance audit, without guidelines would result in inconsistent results among various 
agencies. This is a goal which should be pursued with the State Legislature. 

BACKGROUND AND FACTS-Page 4 

“The 27 special districts in Orange County were formed as early as 1919 and as late as 1964”. 

Response: The Rossmoor Community Services District was established in 1986 (see page 9) 

COMMUNITY SERVICE DISTRICTS-Page 9 

“Rossmoor Community Services District---1986 (limited to parks & recreation, security services and 
street maintenance & repair)”. 

Response: The Rossmoor Community Services (District) provides the following services: 

Parks, recreation, street trees, street sweeping, street lighting, facility maintenance & rental. 

The District does not provide the following services 

 Security services, street maintenance & repair 

SPECIAL DISTRICT BUDGETS, ASSETS, TAXES & FEES-page 13 

“Non-enterprise special districts that have unrestricted reserves greater than their annual budget”. 

“Rossmoor Community Services District;” 

Response #1:  The District disagrees with the numbers in Table 1b, page 14.  

Auditor/Controller Allocations, 2010-2011: The report states a figure of $1,398,000. The number 
provided by the District was $1,388,053.56 

Page 93 of 223Page 66 of 254



Taxes and Assessments 2011-2012: The Report states a figure of $1,393,000. Since the actual taxes and 
assessments for FY 2011-2012 have not all been received, the District submitted its budget for that year 
and it totaled $1,470,000. 

Fees: The Report states a figure of $126,000 and the budgeted number is $125,500. This is probably a 
rounding of the District’s number. 

Interest: The Report states a figure of $35,000 which is correct. 

Other Revenue: The Report states a figure of $155,000. The District cannot calculate any set of numbers 
that produces that amount. 

Total Revenue: The Report states a figure of $1,709,000 which is based on the numbers in the Table 1b. 
As stated above, the District’s total is $1,470,900. 

% Taxes/Total Revenue: The District disagrees with the 82% figure in the Table since there is no 
confidence in the numbers which make up the Total Revenue number.  

RESPONSE #2 

The District disagrees with the numbers in Table 2b on page 15. 

Budget: Neither the District nor its Auditor can determine the source amount called out in the Budget 
column in the Report of $109,000. 

Total Assets and Net Assets: The District agrees with the stated numbers. 

Unrestricted Reserves: As stated in the Districts latest REPORT ON AUDIT dated June 30, 2011, the 
District’s audited unrestricted fund balance numbers are as follows: 

General Fund 10             $726,348 

Capital Projects Contributions Fund 40     $129,048 

Total Unrestricted Fund Balances  $885,396 

 

The District’s audited restricted fund balance numbers are as follows: 

PIFC Rossmoor Wall Fund 30   $168,182 

PIFC Rossmoor Wall Reserve Fund 45 $ 47,000 

Capital Improvements Fund 20  $271,199 

*Total Restricted Fund Balances  $486,381 

Page 94 of 223Page 67 of 254



* These amounts are restricted for debt service payments at the end of the debt service payment 
schedules. 

Total Governmental Funds Balance $1,358,082 

Total Taxes: The District disagrees with the number stated in Table 2b as $1,400,000. Total taxes for FY 
2010-2011 were $1,338,053.26. 

RESPONSE #3 

The District strongly disagrees with the statement that its unrestricted reserves are greater than their 
budget. The District’s Total Budget for FY 2010-2011 is $1,471,271 versus unrestricted reserves of 
$885,396. 

WHAT ARE OTHERS SAYING ABOUT SPECIAL DISTRICTS? – Pages17-18 

The District disagrees with conclusion reached regarding community services districts. Both the Grand 
Jury and its source documents generalize negatively about the value of special districts. Moreover, there 
is a tendency to paint what are uniquely different agencies with the same brush. 

“…eliminate the use of property tax revenues to support independent special districts.” 

“…independent districts serving only the needs of a local community, such as a community service 
district, should become fully supported by local fees.” 

Response: Community services districts provide services not provided by their respective counties. If 
those services were provided by a county, they would be paid for, mostly with property tax revenue. To 
suggest that the tax payers within a community services district boundary pay for those services from 
fees would amount to double taxation. 

“…these governments (independent special districts) that are physically closest to their communities are 
oftentimes unknown to the people they serve…” 

Response: The Rossmoor Community Services District provides a wide variety of direct services to the 
Rossmoor community. The Board of Directors meets monthly, often with special meetings in between, 
conducts numerous committee meetings on specific items, posts all meetings in accordance with the 
Brown Act, televises all monthly meetings, sends a quarterly newsletter to all residents and posts matters 
of interest on its web site, uses Facebook, Twitter and YouTube to communicate with residents and uses 
email blasts to any resident who subscribe to the District’s database.  Moreover, the District serves as a 
conduit for services provided by the County, directing residents to appropriate offices, including utilities 
and other governmental agencies. 

 

 

Page 95 of 223Page 68 of 254



SUMMARY OF FACTS – Pages 22-25 

“5. The last community services district, Surfside Colony Community Service Tax District was formed 
in 1960…” 

Response: The Rossmoor Community Services District was formed 1986. 

“Community service districts are no longer isolated and often integrally entwined with homeowners’ 
associations. These community services districts can be removed from county tax rolls and their 
responsibilities and costs can be borne by either their surrounding cities or homeowners associations”. 

Response: These issues have previously been responded to. However, it is simplistic to assume that a 
homeowners association would want to take on services to be paid for by homeowner assessments. This 
is where double taxation is once again at issue. If cities were to provide those services, they would be 
relying on the same taxing methods to pay for those services. Taxation is a zero sum game. There is no 
free lunch. Therefore, if residents are satisfied with the services they receive from a district rather than a 
city, it is their taxes that pay for those services and they ought to have a choice n the matter. 

“15. Sixteen Orange County special districts have unrestricted reserves exceeding their annual budget. 
These special districts are: 

 Rossmoor Community Service(s) District 

Response: This issue has previously been addressed. This is not a factual statement. 

“19. The 1% property tax on the annual secured tax bill to property owners does not provide details of  
the agencies portion. This hides from the taxpayer the allocation made to the various county funds and 
special districts. 

Response: Rossmoor residents’ tax bills reflect the separate amounts allocated for property tax, lighting 
assessment, and Rush Park and Wall assessments. 

 

FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS – Pages 25-26 

F1. “Most Orange County special districts, with or without the assistance of the Local Agency 
Formation Commission (LAFCO), have been incapable or unwilling to consolidate, absorb, eliminate 
these outmoded and/or redundant agencies” 

Response: The District basically serves at the pleasure of the Rossmoor community. Since its inception, 
there have been numerous attempts to incorporate, be annexed or placed in the Sphere of Influence 
(SOI) of another city. The first two options have been repeatedly defeated by the voters of Rossmoor, 
either of which would have eliminated the District. The community also opposed the placement of 
Rossmoor within the SOI of the City of Los Alamitos. This was overruled by LAFCO. The community 

Page 96 of 223Page 69 of 254



viewed this action as a precursor to annexation which a recent poll indicated an overwhelming 
opposition to being annexed. 

F2. “Special Districts have made very little progress in complying with the recommendations made by 
various governmental agencies”. 

Response: The District is unaware of any recommendations made or not followed. 

F3. “Most non-enterprise special districts of Orange County have outlived their purpose and usefulness. 
Services that were only available through the special districts are now being provided by the 
surrounding cities and expanding county” 

Response: While this is basically a true statement, there is no evidence that the services provided by the 
District cost more than if they were provided by another agency. Moreover, Rossmoor residents enjoy 
the benefit of a local community based agency which is geographically superior to the county or even an 
adjoining city. 

F4. “The eleven non-enterprise special districts in Orange County founded before 1965 have outlived 
their purpose and usefulness. The services that were unavailable from cities and county have long since 
been made available as both the cities and county grew. Some of these special districts could be 
removed from the county tax rolls, and their services funded and absorbed by the county, surrounding 
cities or homeowners association where they abide.” 

Response: First of all, the District was formed in 1986 and the services provided then and now by the 
District were available from other agencies. The District was conceived, however, as a means of 
providing designated services at a local level, much like surrounding cities. The Rossmoor community 
has had several opportunities to change their form of governance and has declined to do so.    

F7. “The unrestricted reserves of the special districts are available to the governing boards to spend as 
they please” 

Response: First of all, the Grand Jury has overstated the unrestricted reserves of the District by a large 
amount. Second, the statement is inflammatory. If true, the same could be said about any government 
agency, including the county and its cities. The statement, however, is not true. There are well 
established processes for the prudent use of public funds. More importantly, the District only imposes 
fees to recover part of the cost of certain services as provided by law. Fees are fully discussed in public 
during budget deliberation which includes a public hearing. Unrestricted reserves are primarily used to 
pay for capital improvements undertaken by the District. There are currently no other means to pay for 
these projects, each of which are approved in open session at a televised Board meeting.  

 Also, the imposition of special assessments or bond measures requires a vote of the electorate with full 
disclosure regarding the agency’s finances to the voters, the rating agencies, and to the bond holders. 
The District has only two bond assessments, which were approved in 1992 and 1998, which are 
obligations of the Rossmoor community, who voted to undertake the debt.  

Page 97 of 223Page 70 of 254



F8. “The boards of directors have the sole discretion to spend these unrestricted reserves”. 

Response: As do City Councils and Boards of Supervisors. The same oversight applies to all levels of 
government. To specifically target agency boards as spendthrifts, or worse, is a disservice to the men 
and women who serve on these boards with little or no compensation. It also discounts the intelligence 
of the voters who placed them into office. 

F10. “The enterprise special districts could save millions of dollars in administration costs by 
consolidating into regional special districts”. 

Response: This recommendation does not apply to the District as it is a non-enterprise special district. 

F12. “The community services that the original non-enterprise special districts provided can be provided 
by the surrounding cities and the county that have engulfed these districts”. 

Response: In its simplest terms, this is a true statement. What is overlooked, however, is the qualitative 
value of the services being provided. If voters choose to be served by a district and to pay for those 
services with their tax dollars, that should be a fundamental right. The Report does not take into account 
the desire or lack of desire to absorb those districts. It also does not factor in the cost to those cities or 
the county to take over those services. As previously stated, this is a zero sum game. Someone has to 
pay for the added service level to those cities or county. 

F14. “The true cost of water and sanitary sewers in the enterprise special districts is hidden when both 
taxes and fees fund these districts”. 

Response: The District does not provide water or sanitary sewer services. 

F15. “The lack of published performance audits has contributed to the public’s ignorance of these 
districts.” 

Response: There is no evidence that the public would pay any more attention to performance audits than 
it does to annual budget and financial audits. The cost of a performance audit for a district of this size 
would not likely result in a corresponding benefit. 

RECOMMENDATIONS – Pages 27-29 

R1. “All special districts should be eliminated from the county tax rolls and should rely on fees or the 
services of surrounding governments.” 

Response: The District disagrees. This matter has been previously addressed. The will of the people and 
double taxation comes to mind once again. 

R2. “Community services districts should be absorbed either in cities surrounding them or into private 
homeowners associations. Each community service district should meet with LAFCO and with the 

Page 98 of 223Page 71 of 254



appropriate city or homeowner’s association to develop plans and schedules for the future of these 
special districts. This meeting should take place before September 30, 2012. 

Response: The District categorically disagrees with the recommendation. The Rossmoor community has 
spoken several times on these issues; the District has also met many times with LAFCO and with the 
surrounding cities of Seal Beach and Los Alamitos. The Rossmoor Homeowners Association already 
works with the District on matters outside the jurisdiction of the District but it is not capable of 
assuming the services provided by the District either financially or managerially. Therefore, the 
recommended meeting is unnecessary and will not be scheduled. 

R7. “Excessive unrestricted reserves should be used to reduce existing debts.” 

Response: The District does not agree with the premise that it has ‘excess’ reserves. A sizeable portion 
of unrestricted reserves are annually transferred to its Capital Improvement Fund 40 for capital projects. 
This is the only source of funds for this purpose. Moreover, the District has made good use of restricted 
reserves to pay down debt, most recently allocating $495,000 to pay down debt in Fund 20. All other 
restricted reserves in Fund 20 and 30 will be used at the end of the payment schedule to pay off the 
remaining debt. 

R8, “Each special district should have an independent performance audit at least every three 
years…Each of the special districts that has not had a performance audit within the last five years should 
contract with an independent outside consultant to conduct such an audit during 2012”. 

Response: The District disagrees that ‘every’ special district should undergo such an audit. As stated in 
the Report, district budgets range from $135,000 to $159,100,000. Such a broad brush recommendation 
would pose a financial burden to smaller districts without much, if any benefit. 

R9. “Each special district should contribute 1% of its unrestricted reserve fund to LAFCO to help 
finance preparing and directing the consolidation, absorption, or elimination, and setting of standards for 
reserves for the special districts.” 

Response: The District already helps fund the operation of OC LAFCO with an annual assessment. 
Moreover, the cost of any application to LAFCO for any reorganizational issue is paid for by the agency 
applying for the change. The District paid over $140,000 in 2008 for the Rossmoor community’s effort 
to consolidate. The District does not consider this recommendation to be useful or prudent. 

R10. “The Orange County Tax Collector should obtain all the specific allocations for the 1% property 
tax from the County Auditor-Controller and show them on the tax bill (not just the current generalized 
summary) sent to each property owner so that the taxpayers are informed of how much each service is 
costing them.” 

Response: This would be a redundant and costly exercise. The District provides all relevant information 
about how it spends its money in its annual and revised budgets. 

Page 99 of 223Page 72 of 254



Page 100 of 223Page 73 of 254

ldeering
Text Box
Attachment 6



Page 101 of 223Page 74 of 254



Page 102 of 223Page 75 of 254



Page 103 of 223Page 76 of 254



Page 104 of 223Page 77 of 254



Page 105 of 223Page 78 of 254



Page 106 of 223Page 79 of 254



Page 107 of 223Page 80 of 254



Page 108 of 223Page 81 of 254



Page 109 of 223Page 82 of 254



Page 110 of 223Page 83 of 254



Page 111 of 223Page 84 of 254



Page 112 of 223Page 85 of 254

ldeering
Text Box
Attachment 7



Page 113 of 223Page 86 of 254



Page 114 of 223Page 87 of 254



Page 115 of 223Page 88 of 254



Page 116 of 223Page 89 of 254

ldeering
Text Box
Attachment 8



Page 117 of 223Page 90 of 254



Page 118 of 223Page 91 of 254

ldeering
Text Box
Attachment 9



Page 119 of 223Page 92 of 254



Page 120 of 223Page 93 of 254



Page 121 of 223Page 94 of 254



Page 122 of 223Page 95 of 254



 1 

 
ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 
AGENDA ITEM D-2 

 
 
Date: July 10, 2012 
 
To: Honorable Board of Directors 
 
From: Public Works/CIP Committee 
 
Via: RCSD, General Manager 
 
Subject: COMMITTEE REPORT RE: REVIEW OF FY 2012-2013 CAPITAL 

IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS AND RECOMMENDED PROJECT 
LISTS AND PROPOSED 2012-2013 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 
BUDGETS 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Receive the report of the Public Works/CIP Committee recommending 
revised FY 2012-2016 project lists and proposed budgets for inclusion 
with the FY 2012-2013 Proposed Final Budget  
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
On June 21, 2012, the Board met and discussed the status of the 
proposed Rush Park Parking Lot Project. After discussion, the Board 
voted to include a sum of $50,000 for the project in the FY 2012-2013 
Fund 40 Budget. This resulted in an out of balance fund balance. In 
order to reconcile the Fund 40 budget, a meeting of the Public 
Works/CIP Committee was scheduled to resolve the matter.  
 
The Public Works/CIP Committee met on June 29, 2012 to review the 
current state of the District’s FY 2012-2013 CIP project list and Fund 
40 budget. The Committee made various recommendations for 
restructuring the project list to conform with the funds available in 
the program year and for there to be a modest carryover into the 
subsequent fiscal year.  
 
The recommendations of the Committee are based on current budget 
revenue estimates and a thorough review of the District’s capital 
needs. The Committee is requesting the Board’s approval of their 
recommendations in order to close out the Proposed FY 2012-2013 

Page 96 of 254



 2 

Final Budget which will be discussed further along in this Agenda. It is 
also pointed out that the Project List and Budget for Fund 40 may be 
revisited during the Board’s Mid-Year Budget Adjustment in the month 
of February or at any time by a Resolution of the Board.  
 
Attached is the Committee’s recommended Fund 40 project list and 
budget. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
1. Public Works/CIP Committee Recommendations Re: Fiscal Year 
2012-2013 CIP Budget and Project List. 
 
 

Page 97 of 254



Page 98 of 254



ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

AGENDA ITEM E-1a. 
 
 

Date:  July 10, 2012 
   
To: Honorable Board of Directors 
 

From: RCSD, General Manager 
 

Subject: MINUTES:  REGULAR MEETING OF JUNE 12, 2012 
  

 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of June 12, 2012 as 
prepared by the Board’s Secretary/General Manager. 
 

 
BACKGROUND: 

The report reflects the actions of the Board at their Regular June 12, 
2012 Meeting of the Board as recorded by the Board’s 
Secretary/General Manager.  
 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Minutes-Regular Meeting of June 12, 2012 Prepared by the Board’s 
Secretary/General Manager. 

 

Page 99 of 254



                                                                                    
                                                                    MINUTES 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

                                                               
REGULAR MEETING 

 
RUSH PARK 

3021 Blume Drive 
Rossmoor, California 

 
Tuesday, June 12, 2012 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 

A.    ORGANIZATION  

 1.   CALL TO ORDER:  7:05 P.M. 

2.  ROLL CALL:   Directors Casey, Kahlert, Rips, Maynard, 
 President Coletta 

 
3.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

4.  PRESENTATIONS 

   a. OCTA Update: WCC Project Traffic Impacts-Sarah Swensson, Outreach Manager 

Outreach Manager Sarah Swensson updated the board on recent West County Connector 
projects involving I-405 and the I-605 freeway construction and closures. She stated that the 
takedown of the 405/605 at Valleyview project was coming to a close and construction on the 
northbound 405 would begin after the 4th of July. She reported that the freeway closure projects 
would not be occurring simultaneously after all. She underscored the fact that the OCTA had 
done robust community outreach with regular email and website updates, public hearings, 
Stakeholders working group meetings, community events, open houses and public service 
announcements. They had also worked with local law enforcement to strategize mitigation 
techniques for the cut-through traffic issues being forecasted. She added that there was now a 
Google map on the OCTA website which provided real time traffic impacts. Discussion ensued 
relative to lane closure impact on emergency vehicles, possible notifications to Long Beach 
Memorial Hospital and bike lanes. Ms. Swensson stated that she appreciated the Board’s 
suggestions and would research their implementation. 

 
B. ADDITIONS TO AGENDA –None 

C. PUBLIC FORUM:  
 

Sophia Bean requested status on whether the Board intended to allow children to climb trees in 
Rossmoor parks. President Coletta replied that he was glad Sophia came back to speak to the 
Board, however, they would not be putting the matter on the agenda and could not accommodate 
her request due to public safety concerns. 

 

Page 100 of 254



                                                             

2 
 

D. REPORTS TO THE BOARD 
 

1. REPORT OF THE BUDGET COMMITTEE RE: PRELIMINARY FY 2012-2013 
ANNUAL BUDGET 
 
Discussion ensued relative to televised Board meetings on LATV-3, financing of the Rush 
Park Parking lot and approving a notice of a public hearing to adopt a final budget and 
whether or not to continue the District’s donation of $6,200 to the City of Los Alamitos for 
the annual 4th of July fireworks. President Coletta heard from the Budget Committee. It was 
the consensus of the Board that the District had spent a great deal of time and effort in 
branding the community of Rossmoor, and they wanted to maintain the District’s donor 
identity and community tradition. 
 
Motion by Director Kahlert, seconded by Director Casey to donate $6,200 to the City of 
Los Alamitos for the Joint Forces Training Base 4th of July Fireworks celebration, and 
receive and file the report of the budget committee. Motion passed 5-0. 

 
2. REPORT OF THE CONSULTING GENERAL MANAGER RE: GOVERNANCE 
(THIS ITEM WAS PULLED FROM THE AGENDA FOR DISCUSSION AT A 
LATER DATE) 
 
Item D-2 was pulled from the agenda on the advice of District Counsel for discussion at a 
later date.  

 
E. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

1a. MINUTES-REGULAR BOARD MEETING OF MAY 8, 2012 
 

2.  APRIL 2012 REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT 

The Consent Calendar was unanimously approved as submitted. Motion passed, 5-0. The 
General Manager stated that the Special Meeting minutes of June 9, 2012 would be 
submitted at the July meeting of the board. 

 
F. PUBLIC HEARING-None 

 
G. RESOLUTIONS-None 

 
H. REGULAR CALENDAR 
 

1. PROPOSED FY 2012-2013 PRELIMINARY BUDGET 
 
Receive the report of the Consulting General Manager, set date of public hearing and 
provide direction regarding the formulation of FY 2012-2013 Final Budget. It was 
recommended that the Board review the recommendations of the Budget Committee, 
receive both budget documents and direct the General Manager to bring these documents 
back at the July meeting, with any revisions, for further review and input from the 

Page 101 of 254



                                                             

3 
 

community and to publish a Notice of Public Hearing for adoption of a Final Budget at 
the July Board meeting. 

 
Discussion ensued. President Coletta was averse to the debt financing options in order to 
pay for the parking lot construction. He felt that he needed more information regarding 
the condition of the concrete and asphalt and whether that condition warranted immediate 
repair, or could be delayed. In order to make an informed decision, validate assumptions 
and cost factors, decide which fiscal year to schedule the parking lot project and how to 
pay for it, he suggested a Special Board meeting with the entire Board and Mr. Russ 
Lightcap present.  

 
Resident Dave Burgess had comments and questions relative to the parking lot project. 
President Coletta stated that government projects were more complicated and had to 
include prevailing wage. He invited Mr. Burgess to attend the upcoming Special Meeting 
and CIP committee meetings, all of which were open to the public. 
 
Motion by Director Maynard, seconded by Director Rips to receive the General 
Manager’s report and schedule a Special Meeting, for Thursday, June 21, 2012, in order 
to carefully vet the parking lot construction project. Motion passed 5-0. 
 
Motion by President Coletta, seconded by Director Casey to set the date of the public 
hearing for the July 10, 2012 Board Meeting. Motion passed 5-0. 

 
2. 2ND AMENDMENT TO AMENDED AND RESTATED AGREEMENT 
W/KELRAN, LLC FOR TREE CONSULTING SERVICES 
 
Approve the Second Amendment to Amended and Restated Agreement with Kelran, LLC 
for provision of tree consulting services. 
 
Discussion ensued. It was the consensus of the board that the 2% C.O.L.A. increase was a 
nominal fee to pay for the excellent service the District currently received from Mr. 
Randy Reynolds. Motion by President Coletta, seconded by Director Rips to approve the 
second amendment to the amended and restated agreement with KelRan, LLC for 
provision of tree consulting services. Motion passed 5-0. 
 
3. NEW THREE-YEAR AGREEMENT WITH WEST COAST ARBORIST, INC. 
FOR PARK AND PARKWAY ARBORIST AND TREE MAINTENANCE 
SERVICES 

 
Recommendation to authorize General Manager to execute a new three-year Agreement 
with West Coast Arborist, Inc (WCA). The District’s current Agreement with West Coast 
Arborist, Inc. will expire on July 1, 2012. The current Agreement is in its third one-year 
amendment period. Attached is a proposed new three-year Agreement.  
 
Discussion ensued relative to the CPI increase for the first year and second and third year 
cost projections. Motion by Director Casey, seconded by Director Rips to authorize the 
General Manager to execute a new three year agreement with West Coast Arborist, Inc 
(WCA). Motion passed 5-0.   

Page 102 of 254



                                                             

4 
 

 
I. GENERAL MANAGER ITEMS 

 
The General Manager had comments relative to item D-2 which had been pulled from the 
agenda. He briefed the Board on the two recent Attorney General Opinions, which proved 
to be favorable toward the District.  President Coletta requested that he provide a recap of 
the Probolsky poll results relative to RCSD Board composition and performance, and 
Special Counsel services. The General Manager stated that the Board had an 80% approval 
rating from the community; the public voted 69% in favor of Latent Powers; and in most 
cases Special Counsel was only hired as a substitution to General Counsel BB&K on 
Latent Powers and Annexation issues, due to the fact that they also represented LAFCO, 
which created a conflict of interest. He added that, despite repeated public records requests, 
the District had still never received financial data and methodology from the County. 

 
J. BOARD MEMBER ITEMS    

 
President Coletta had comments relative to recent derogatory comments made in the press 
by Supervisor Moorlach. He also requested that the Special meeting be calendared for 
Thursday, June 21st and requested the cost of the Rossmoor community wall signage 
project at that time. 
 
Director Maynard expressed his confusion at Supervisor Moorlach’s recent comments and 
stated that the more people in Rossmoor who cared about Rossmoor, the better. He added 
that Supervisor Moorlach was seriously out of step with the desires of his constituents and 
that his pride and ego were causing him to make silly statements. Director Maynard 
encouraged the community to continue to participate and care about Rossmoor’s 
governance. 
 
Director Casey stated that he would be attending the ISDOC meeting, where they would be 
rebutting the Orange County Grand Jury’s recent report on Special Districts. He thanked 
the General Manager for providing his successor with a smooth transition and stated that he 
was pleased that he would be remaining on as a consultant. 

 
K.   CLOSED SESSION-None 
 
L. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Motion by President Coletta, seconded by Director Rips to adjourn the regular meeting at 
8:40 p.m. Motion passed 5-0. 

 
SUBMITTED BY: 
 
Henry Taboada 
Consulting General Manager 

Page 103 of 254



ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

AGENDA ITEM E-1b. 
 
 

Date:  July 10, 2012 
   
To: Honorable Board of Directors 
 

From: RCSD, General Manager 
 

Subject: MINUTES:  SPECIAL MEETING OF JUNE 7, 2012 
  

 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve the Minutes of the Special Meeting of June 7, 2012 as 
prepared by the Board’s Secretary/General Manager. 
 

 
BACKGROUND: 

The report reflects the actions of the Board at their Special June 7, 
2012 Meeting of the Board as recorded by the Board’s 
Secretary/General Manager.  
 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Minutes-Special Meeting of June 7, 2012 Prepared by the Board’s 
Secretary/General Manager. 

 

Page 104 of 254



                      
                                                               
                                                                    MINUTES 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

                                                               
SPECIAL MEETING 

 
Rossmoor Park Community Center 

3232 Hedwig Road 
Rossmoor, California 

 
Thursday, June 7, 2012 

6:30 P.M. 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

 
A.    ORGANIZATION  
 
 1.   CALL TO ORDER:  6:35 P.M. 
 

2.  ROLL CALL:   Directors Casey, Kahlert, Maynard, Rips, 
                                 President Coletta   
  
3.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

B. PUBLIC FORUM-None 
 
C.  REGULAR AGENDA  
 

1. DISCUSSION WITH CONSULTING GENERAL MANAGER AND POSSIBLE 
ACTION RE: ENGAGEMENT OF SPECIAL COUNSEL, JENKINS & 
HOGIN, LLP. 

 
Consulting General Manager introduced Mr. Michael Jenkins and Mr. Gregg 
Kovacevich who addressed the Board on their qualifications, experience and 
background, for proposing to serve as Special Counsel for the District. 
Discussion ensued. After discussion a motion was made by Director Kahlert 
and seconded by Director Casey to engage the services of Jenkins & Hogin, 
LLP as Special Counsel for issues pertaining to the OC Grand Jury Report and 
the District's Tree Policy. The motion carried 5-0. 

 
2. DISCUSSION WITH CONSULTING GENERAL MANAGER RE: RESIDENT 

DIRECT MAIL OPTIONS-LATV3.  
 

Consulting General Manager reported on options for determining resident 
views regarding the broadcasting of District Board Meetings on LATV3. The 
Consulting General Manager stated that the District had only received a 
handful of resident's preferences following an editorial opinion in a local 

Page 105 of 254



                                                             

 2 

newspaper. Discussion ensued and motion to table the matter was made by 
Director Rips. 

 
AT 7:20 P. M. THE BOARD ADJOURNED TO CLOSED SESSION TO DISCUSS 
AGENDA ITEM D-1. 

 
D. CLOSED SESSION 
 

1.  CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (c) Two potential cases. 

 
 

The Closed Session concluded at 8:25 p.m. and Board President Coletta reported 
out the following actions in open session. 
 

1. Conference with General Counsel-No reportable action 
 
2.  Conference with Special Counsel-No reportable action. 

 
 
E. GENERAL MANAGER ITEMS 
 

The Consulting General Manager reported an update of various non-action items. 
 
 

F. BOARD MEMBER ITEMS—None  
 

 
G. ADJOURNMENT 
 

The meeting was adjourned at 8:45 p.m. 
 
 

SUBMITTED BY: 
 
Henry Taboada 
Consulting General Manager 

 
 

Page 106 of 254



ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

AGENDA ITEM E-1c. 
 
 

Date:  July 10, 2012 
   
To: Honorable Board of Directors 
 

From: RCSD, General Manager 
 

Subject: MINUTES:  SPECIAL MEETING OF JUNE 21, 2012 
  

 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve the Minutes of the Special Meeting of June 21, 2012 as 
prepared by the Board’s Secretary/General Manager. 
 

 
BACKGROUND: 

The report reflects the actions of the Board at their Special June 21, 
2012 Meeting of the Board as recorded by the Board’s 
Secretary/General Manager.  
 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Minutes-Special Meeting of June 21, 2012 Prepared by the Board’s 
Secretary/General Manager. 

 

Page 107 of 254



                      
                                                               
                                                                    MINUTES 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

                                                               
SPECIAL MEETING 

 
Rush Park Administration Building 

3001 Blume Drive 
Rossmoor, California 

 
Thursday, June 21, 2012 

6:00 P.M. 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

 
A.    ORGANIZATION  
 
 1.   CALL TO ORDER:  6:04 P.M. 
 

2.  ROLL CALL:   Directors Casey, Kahlert, Maynard, Rips, 
                                 President Coletta   
  
3.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

B. PUBLIC FORUM-None 
 
C.  REGULAR AGENDA  
 
 1.  DISCUSSION WITH CONSULTING GENERAL MANAGER AND POSSIBLE  
       ACTION RE: RUSH PARK PARKING LOT REHABILITATION PROJECT 
  

Consulting General Manager introduced Mr. Russ Lightcap and Ms. Cheryl Williamsen 
as present to assist the Board in their deliberation of the proposed project. He then 
presented the staff report. Mr. Lightcap and Ms. Williamsen also provided background 
information to the Board. Discussion ensued. Members of the public made comments and 
asked questions. After consideration of the issues, a motion was made by Director Coletta 
and seconded by Director Maynard to budget $50,000 in FY 2012-2013 Fund 40 Budget 
for maintenance of the parking lot. The motion carried 5-0. 
 

AT 7:15 P.M. THE BOARD ADJOURNED TO CLOSED SESSION TO DISCUSS 
AGENDA ITEM D-1. 
 
D. CLOSED SESSION 
 
 1. CONFERENCE WITH CONSULTING GENERAL MANAGER RE:   

    DISMISSAL OF PUBLIC EMPLOYEE-GENERAL COUNSEL 
    Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957 
 

Page 108 of 254



                                                             

 2 

THE CLOSED SESSION CONCLUDED AT 7:30 P.M. AND BOARD PRESIDENT 
COLETTA REPORTED OUT THE FOLLOWING ACTION IN PUBLIC SESSION 
 

1. By unanimous vote (5-0) of the Board, BB&K was dismissed as  
    General Counsel for the District. 
 

E.   GENERAL MANAGER ITEMS 
 
The Consulting General Manager provided the Board with a cost estimate of the Rossmoor 
Shopping Village Signage Project as requested by the Board. 
 
F.   BOARD MEMBER ITEMS-None 
 
F. ADJOURNMENT 
 

The meeting was adjourned at 8:00 p.m. 
 
 

SUBMITTED BY: 
 
Henry Taboada 
Consulting General Manager 

 
 

Page 109 of 254



 ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

AGENDA ITEM E-2 
 

Date: July 10, 2012 
 
To: Honorable Board of Directors 
 
From: Consulting General Manager 
 
Subject: REVENUE & EXPENDITURE REPORT – MAY, 2012 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Receive and file the Revenue and Expenditure Report for May, 2012. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The Revenue & Expenditure Report is submitted on a monthly basis as 
an indication of the District’s unaudited year-to-date revenues and 
expenses. Where appropriate, footnotes provide information which 
explains current anomalies.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
1. Revenue & Expenditure Report for the month of May, 2012. 
 
 

Page 110 of 254



Page 111 of 254



Page 112 of 254



Page 113 of 254



Page 114 of 254



Page 115 of 254



Page 116 of 254



Page 117 of 254



Page 118 of 254



Page 119 of 254



Page 120 of 254



Page 121 of 254



Page 122 of 254



Page 123 of 254



Page 124 of 254



Page 125 of 254



 1 

 
ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 
AGENDA ITEM F-1 

 
 
Date: July 10, 2012 
 
To: Honorable Board of Directors 
 
From: Consulting General Manager 
 
Subject: PUBLIC HEARING-FISCAL YEAR 2012-2013 PROPOSED FINAL 

BUDGET 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Open hearing, receive presentation from General Manager, take public 
testimony, close hearing, deliberate and approve Fiscal Year 2012-
2013 Proposed Final Budget. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
A Fiscal Year 2012-2013 Preliminary Budget was presented to the 
Board at your May and June meetings. After deliberation of the 
Preliminary Budget, the General Manager was directed to publish a 
Notice of Public Hearing for this evening’s meeting.  SB 135 requires 
that the hearing be noticed and a hearing be held prior to adoption of 
the Final Budget. A copy of that Notice of Public Hearing is attached. 
 
The document before you was prepared before final year 2011-2012 
budget numbers have been audited by the District’s Auditor. This is 
due to the timing of the budget calendar required by SB 135 which 
does not provide sufficient time to complete an audit before the Final 
Budget must be adopted. Therefore, the Final Budget will not be fully 
reconciled until the Audit is completed, at which time it will be 
presented to the Audit Committee and the Board at a future meeting. 
 
The Budget Estimates to Close, however, are considered sufficiently 
accurate for adoption of the Final Budget. The Final Budget has also 
been adjusted to account for changes recommended by the Board 
during the intervening period since your review of the Preliminary 
Budget. These changes include the Annual Salary Plan and CIP Budget 
adjustments, as recommended by the Public Works/CIP Committee.  

Page 128 of 254



 2 

Upon the Board’s approval of the Proposed Final Budget, you will be 
asked to adopt Annual Budget Revenues and Expenditures Total 
Amounts by resolution.    
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
1. Memorandum from the General Manager dated July 10, 2012, FY 
2012- 2013 Proposed Final Budget Message. 
 
2. Fiscal Year 2012-2013 Proposed Final Budget. 
 
3. Notice of Public Hearing.  

Page 129 of 254



 1 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 

TO:                             BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
FROM:                       HENRY TABOADA 
                                 GENERAL MANAGER 
 
DATE:                        July 10, 2012 
 
SUBJECT:               FY 2012-2013 PROPOSED FINAL BUDGET           
MESSAGE 
 
 
The Fiscal Year 2012-2013 Proposed Final Budget continues in its current format which bifurcates the 
Preliminary and the Final Budget processes, as dictated by SB 135 and Board policy. The budget format 
instituted five years ago spreads administrative costs and overhead to appropriate operating departments, 
thus depicting a more accurate statement of the cost of providing specific services. Although the method 
of allocating those costs is not based on a formal cost allocation model, a fee analysis conducted by a 
professional firm has allocated a majority of the District’s recoverable costs to the appropriate 
departments and categories of expense. Therefore, the spreading of overall costs is considered to be 
within an acceptable range of accuracy.  
 
As in previous years, the Preliminary Budget was presented to the Board in May without year end 
figures. These entries will be reconciled when the FY 2011-2012 Report on Audit is completed by the 
District’s Auditor in the Fall of 2012. SB135, which governs the budget cycle for special districts, 
mandates final budget adoption by August. This tends to limit the early development of final audited 
numbers prior to budget adoption. The Board, however, may amend the budget by resolution at mid-
year, or when necessary. 
 
In spite of the current economy, the District has continued to receive most all of its anticipated revenues. 
Once again, future revenue forecasts suggest stable to slightly lower revenue flow. Therefore, this year’s 
estimated expenses continue to reflect either modest or no enhancements to services, while still 
projecting a modest carryover of fund balance for next fiscal year. The unknowns at this time, however, 
are still considered to be formidable. 
 
First, this year’s State Budget process has been a repeat of the last three years, which began and ended in 
disarray. While there were mid-year reductions this fiscal year (11-12), the State budget situation 
remains precarious. The Governor’s May Revised budget numbers and the State Controller’s cash flow 
analysis continue to indicate that most anticipated revenues have fallen far short of projections. The 
Legislature and the Governor have attempted to deal with an estimated shortfall of $15.7B for the 
upcoming year by approving a budget that is suspect in its assumptions. Unfortunately, most real budget 
closing measures have been used up balancing the last three year’s Budgets. Thus far, budget balancing 
solutions, mostly based on service cuts, have been factored into the State Budget. New taxes proposed 
by the Governor for the November election appear problematic, at best. 
  

Page 130 of 254

ldeering
Text Box
Attachment 1



 2 

Second, the County has once again developed its budget and balanced it, without knowing the full 
impact still forthcoming from the State. The full impact of the recently eliminated redevelopment 
agencies throughout the State and County are yet to be determined. Budget reductions based on one-time 
revenues, employee layoffs and retirement plan reductions have helped to stem the budget shortfall but 
much more remains to be done. Due to a huge unfunded pension liability, continuing attention is being 
paid to additional pension reform. Last year, the County received a major setback in a court decision 
which rejected a proposal to end retroactive benefits.  
 
Third, the predicted impact to Rossmoor from the estimated $590,000 subsidy reflected in the Local 
Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) Comprehensive Fiscal Analysis (CFA) has not materialized. 
The County had intimated that they would make an effort to recover some or perhaps most of the 
subsidy; either by reducing services, charging for services or both. A year later, no definitive proposal 
has been developed or submitted by the County. Instead, LAFCO published a Case Study which stated 
that what the County had termed a drain on the County, the estimated amount had decreased to 
$127,000. 
 
Fortunately, the District has yet to be adversely affected by the County’s financial turmoil. Moreover, an 
analysis of the Case Study, by a forensic accounting, firm commissioned by the District revealed that 
instead of a drain on the County, the District was a donor of at least $317,440 and perhaps, even 
$500,000. A Public Records Act Request by the District for financial data from the County is still 
pending. 
 
Fourth, a more insidious situation is the political turmoil which has been generated by the County, 
LAFCO and the City of Los Alamitos. While these issues of governance do not normally appear in a 
budget analysis, the implications on a proposed annexation of the Rossmoor Shopping Village by Los 
Alamitos, a proposal for provision of municipal services by Los Alamitos or even a proposed County-
wide utility users tax all present financial issues which are still lurking and unquantifiable at this time. 
 
These factors are only cited in order to stimulate a thoughtful discussion about the Final Budget. This 
information is provided solely for the purpose of informing the Board about potential budget impacts 
during the 2012-2013 Fiscal Year. As always, our focus will be directed at the proper management and 
development of the District’s programs and areas of responsibility.  Moreover, the Board will be advised 
if a mid-course correction is needed, and in sufficient time to adjust spending patterns accordingly.   
 
Moving to what is known; a significant component of our projected revenues has been attributable to the 
District’s investment strategy. Over the years, a sizeable amount of money has been placed in 
investment accounts which are liquid, high yielding and safe. Although current interest rates are very 
low, the District’s portfolio still has several longer term investments which are yielding a modest rate of 
return on investment.  All investments are made in accordance with the District’s investment policy 
which is based on limitations and safeguards set forth in the California Government Code. While the 
economic outlook still remains bleak, return on investment remains an important component of the 
District’s total revenue profile. 
 
The mainstay of the District’s revenue continues to be property related taxes and assessments. The 
State’s Prop 1A takeaway of $71,000, almost three years ago is scheduled for repayment during the 

Page 131 of 254



 3 

coming fiscal year. It is anticipated that the District will receive back the takeaway, with interest in June 
of 2013.   
 
Another important element of a sound budgeting process is a well developed mission statement with 
corresponding goals and objectives. Each fiscal year the Board readopts its mission statement and a 
comprehensive set of goals which mirror the District’s primary areas of responsibility. 
 
These areas include such activities as parks, recreation and parkway trees, as well as other important 
service elements. The District’s budget is structured to properly allocate available resources to those 
activities; thus ensuring that resources meet anticipated expenses in providing the desired levels of 
service to the community. The General Manager’s Quarterly Status Report is also formatted to 
correspond with the elements of the Board’s Mission Statement and its Goals and Objectives, thus 
providing the Board with a status of performance. A review of these documents should be considered by 
the Board during the coming year, particularly if changes in governance should occur. 
 
An application to LAFCO, sometime next fiscal, year for additional services would require a 
restructuring of the budget, if approval is obtained from LAFCO. This should not be considered a major 
budget issue, since LAFCO would require that sufficient revenues for these services be consistent with 
their cost. 
  
A further revenue enhancement could be achieved by the restructuring of the District’s Fee Schedule. 
This year, revenue from fees decreased although some fees were adjusted. A probable cause for this is 
thought to be the option for a renter to substitute a lower cost rental of a park space instead of a higher 
cost rental of a building. A fee study was not deemed necessary for this year, although recovery of costs 
for services remains one of the only discretionary means of revenue available to the District.   
 
Prudent and judicious use of reserves is another key factor in evaluating the fiscal condition of the 
District. Most local governments would be delighted to have the ratio of budget to reserves which the 
District enjoys. The District also has no debt service that relies on an annual appropriation by the Board 
of Directors. The current payments for financing the acquisition of Rush Park and the rebuilding of the 
community’s Signature Wall are all financed with assessments paid by individual homeowners. Due to 
the District’s reserve position, ninety-nine Rush Park bonds of $5,000 each were retired last year, saving 
Rossmoor residents a substantial amount of interest while reducing the total bond indebtedness.  
 
Another evolving budget element is the District’s Capital Improvement Program (CIP) budget. Again 
next year, $100,000 from Fund 20, based on the administrative repayment provision in the bond 
covenants, are being transferred for funding of the District’s capital project program. This year, the Final 
Budget once again designates those capital expenditures over $5,000 within Fund 40, the District’s CIP 
budget. A four-year program is included in the budget which forecasts future projects and possible 
revenue sources. Therefore, future budgets will need to reflect an accounting for the multi-year program 
for capital projects whether or not funding has been identified. In this manner, the Board will be able to 
track the District’s needs into the future and make more informed planning decisions in outer years. The 
proposed project schedule was reviewed and approved for submission to the Board by the Public 
Works/CIP Committee.  
 

Page 132 of 254



 4 

In summary, the District’s finances are in good order and there is the capacity for modest growth while 
maintaining a prudent reserve. Nevertheless this year’s budget should be considered to be transitional in 
nature. The implications of this and the coming year’s uncertainties lend themselves to a conservative 
approach to spending and savings. In spite of the uncertainty, proposed service levels are being 
maintained and capital projects are on the immediate horizon.  
 
There is, however, a note of caution. Reserves were used last fiscal year to fund worthwhile capital 
projects. Improvements to our buildings has resulted in a significant increase in the use of our  upgraded 
facilities with a corresponding increase in rental revenue. Also, as previously mentioned, the Board 
authorized the use of pooled restricted funds in the amount of $185,000 to retire a portion of Rush Park 
bond indebtedness; also a worthy use of funds. The result, however, is that cash flow was severely 
reduced and expenditures had to be closely monitored during the FY 2010-11. Although the District has 
a healthy reserve, most of it is invested in time certain instruments which were not readily available for 
cash flow purposes. 
Moreover, payments from the County for the first half of the fiscal year were nominal until the 
November-December timeframe.  
 
Nonetheless, the District was able to manage its expenses and pay all regular bills. Unanticipated 
expenses were carefully balanced with regular ongoing expenses. This is only mentioned to provide 
context to the proposed budget and to report that based on current finances, cashflow availability is 
almost back to normal and the use of reserves should be necessary. 
 
As a final note, this year’s budget contains both beginning and ending fund balances for each fund. Also, 
in accordance with the Auditor’s Report, a GASB 45 requirement for a dedicated reserve amount (which 
is characterized as a “rainy day” fund) has been determined. The amount recommended by the Budget 
Committee for this reserve is $250,000. This amount will be invested in a liquid account, should it be 
needed for use during a financial crisis. 
In closing, whatever the future portends, policy and management fiscal controls are in place to meet 
those challenges. I wish to thank the Board of Directors for their service and attention to the needs of the 
District. Hopefully, this budget reflects the trust you have placed in your management and staff.  

Page 133 of 254



Page 134 of 254

ldeering
Text Box
Attachment 2



Page 135 of 254



Page 136 of 254



Page 137 of 254



Page 138 of 254



Page 139 of 254



Page 140 of 254



Page 141 of 254



Page 142 of 254



Page 143 of 254



Page 144 of 254



Page 145 of 254



Page 146 of 254



Page 147 of 254



Page 148 of 254



NOTICE OF 
PREPARATION OF FINAL BUDGET 

HEARING ON PROPOSED FINAL BUDGET 
OF ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

FOR FISCAL YEAR 2012-2013 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board of Directors of the Rossmoor Community 
Services District has reviewed a preliminary budget as of June 12, 2012 for fiscal year 
2012-2013, and the General Manager of the District has prepared a proposed Final Budget 
for the District for fiscal year 2012-2013. The proposed Final Budget is available for 
inspection at the District office between the hours of 9:00 A.M. and 5:00 PM, Monday 
through Friday. Persons wishing to inspect the proposed final budget should ask for Henry 
Taboada, the District's General Manager, and state that they wish to review the proposed 
Final Budget for fiscal year 2012-2013. The District office is located at 3001 Blume Drive, 
Rossmoor, CA 90720. 

NOTICE IS ALSO GIVEN that the Board of Directors of the District will conduct a 
hearing on the proposed Final Budget on July 10, 2012, commencing at 7:00 P.M., at the District 
Auditorium, 3021 Blume Drive, Rossmoor, CA 90720. Any person may appear at the time 
of the hearing and be heard regarding any item in the proposed Final Budget, or regarding 
the addition of other items. Following the hearing, the Board of Directors may adopt the 
proposed Final Budget as the District's Final Budget for fiscal year 2012-2013. 

 

Henry Taboada     June 10, 2012 

Board Secretary         Date 

Page 149 of 254

ldeering
Text Box
Attachment 3



 
ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 
AGENDA ITEM G-1 

 
Date: July 10, 2012 
 
To: Honorable Board of Directors 
 
From: Consulting General Manager 
 
Subject: RESOLUTION No. 12-07-10-01 APPROVING AND ADOPTING 

THE ANNUAL APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT FOR FISCAL YEAR 
2012-2013  

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve by roll call vote, Resolution N0. 12-07-10-01 by reading the 
title only and waiving further reading as follows: 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT APPROVING AND 
ADOPTING THE ANNUAL APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT FOR FISCAL 
YEAR 2012-2013.  
 

BACKGROUND: 
 
Article XIII B of the State Constitution requires that the District Board 
of Directors establish the Fiscal Year appropriations limit by 
calculating population and inflation factors. The 2012-2013 Fiscal 
Year appropriations limitation shall be $1,727,847. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
1. Resolution No. 12-07-10-01 and Exhibit A. 
 
2. May 2012 Letter from Director of the California Department of 
Finance and Enclosures I and II.  

Page 150 of 254



 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 12-07-10-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

APPROVING AND ADOPTING THE ANNUAL  
APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2012-2013 

 
 
 
 WHEREAS, on November 6, 1979, the voters of California added Article XIII B 
to the State Constitution placing limitations on the appropriations of State and local 
government; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Article XIII B was amended by voters in November 1990 through 
the passage of Proposition 111; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Article XIII B now requires the District Board to select population 
and inflation factors for the year’s appropriations limit calculation. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the Rossmoor Community 
Services District does hereby resolve as follows: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the 2012-2013 appropriations limitation shall be $1,727,847 as 
documented in Exhibit A. 
 
 SECTION 2.  That the inflation factor being utilized to determine the 2012-2013 
appropriations limit is the percentage change in California per capita personal income. 
 
 SECTION 3. That the population factor being utilized to calculate the 2012-2013 
appropriations limit is the County population growth. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 10th day of July 2012. 
 
 
 AYES:            
 

NOES:                 
 
 ABSTAIN:     
 
 ABSENT:        
 
 
 
 

Page 151 of 254

ldeering
Text Box
Attachment 1



 2 

    BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
    ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 
 
    By:  _________________________________________ 
           Alfred Coletta,  President 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Henry Taboada, Secretary  
Rossmoor Community Services District 
 
 

Page 152 of 254



Page 153 of 254



Page 154 of 254

ldeering
Text Box
Attachment 2



Page 155 of 254



Page 156 of 254



ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

AGENDA ITEM G-2 
  

 
Date: July 10, 2012 
 
To: Honorable Board of Directors 
 
From: Consulting General Manager 
 
Subject: RESOLUTION No. 12-07-10-02 ESTABLISHING THE ANNUAL 

BUDGET REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE TOTALS AMOUNT 
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2012-2013 FOR THE ROSSMOOR 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT.  

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve Resolution No. 12-07-10-02 by reading the title only and 
waiving further reading as follows: 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT ESTABLISHING THE 
ANNUAL BUDGET REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE TOTALS AMOUNT 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2012-2013 FOR THE ROSSMOOR 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT. 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The Board, at their June 12, 2012 Regular Meeting, discussed the 
Preliminary Budget and authorized the General Manager to submit a 
Proposed Final Budget for the Fiscal Year 2012-2013. Approval of this 
resolution is in keeping with SB 135 which requires approval of the 
Final Budget by a Resolution of the Board of Directors. This action 
also establishes budgetary control by the Board at the Fund level. At 
the July meeting, the Board also adopted a resolution establishing the 
FY 2012-2013 Expenditure Limits. The proposed expenditure totals of 
the Final Budget are within those limits. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
1. Resolution No. 12-07-10-02. 
 
2. Attachment A - Annual Budget Expenditures Totals Amount 
Summary. 

Page 157 of 254



RESOLUTION 12-07-10-02 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE ROSSMOOR 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT ESTABLISHING THE ANNUAL 
BUDGET REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE TOTALS AMOUNT FOR THE 
FISCAL YEAR 2012-2013 FOR THE ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES 
DISTRICT 

 
 

 WHERE AS, the Rossmoor Community Services District did discuss and 
approve at a public hearing, the District’s Fiscal Year 2012-2013 Final Budget at its 
Regular Meeting on July  10, 2012. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the 
Rossmoor Community Services District, that it hereby establishes the Annual Budget 
Revenue and Expenditure totals by Fund in the amounts specified in Attachment A for 
the Fiscal Year 2012-2013. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 10th day of July, 2012. 
 
 
 
    BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
    ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 
    By: ____________________________ 
                     Alfred Coletta, President 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Henry Taboada, Secretary 
Rossmoor Community Services District  

Page 158 of 254

ldeering
Text Box
Attachment 1



TOTAL FUND REVENUES

FUND 10 $1,280,388

FUND 20 $447,998

FUND 30 $96,073

FUND 40 $289,863

TOTAL ALL FUNDS $2,114,322

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES

FUND 10 $1,213,562

FUND 20 $264,855

FUND 30 $83,120

FUND 40 $195,161

TOTAL ALL FUNDS $1,756,698

ATTACHMENT A

ANNUAL FISCAL YEAR 2012-2013 ANNUAL BUDGET REVENUE

AND EXPENDITURE TOTALS AMOUNT SUMMARY

Page 159 of 254

ldeering
Text Box
Attachment 2



 
ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 
AGENDA ITEM H-1 

 
Date: July 10, 2012 
 
To: Honorable Board of Directors 
 
From: Consulting General Manager 
 
Subject: CSDA BOARD OF DIRECTORS ELECTION 2012 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Discuss proposed slate of candidates and give direction to General 
Manager to submit the vote of the Board to the CSDA. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
As a member in good standing of California Special Districts 
Association, the District is entitled to vote on representatives for 
Region 6. Attached is a communication from CSDA requesting that the 
District submit its vote for Seat A and Seat C, two of three seats for 
Region 6. Also included are statements from the three candidates for 
the position.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
1. Communication from CSDA received June 13, 2012 re: Mail Ballot 
Information. 
 
2. Letter of Support for Candidate Sullivan. 
 
3. CSDA Ballot. 
 

Page 160 of 254



Page 161 of 254

ldeering
Text Box
Attachment 1



Page 162 of 254

ldeering
Text Box
Attachment 2



Page 163 of 254



Page 164 of 254



Page 165 of 254



Page 166 of 254

ldeering
Text Box
Attachment 2



Page 167 of 254



 
ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM H-2 
  

 
Date: July 10, 2012 
 
To: Honorable Board of Directors 
 
From: Consulting General Manager 
 
Subject: EXTENDED TERM AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE TENNIS 

INSTRUCTION AT ROSSMOOR PARK-FERNANDO MOLINA 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve an Extended Term Agreement with Mr. Fernando Molina to 
provide tennis instructions 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
For the past several years, the District has had a Professional Services 
Agreement with Mr. Fernando Molina for the provision of tennis 
instruction at Rossmoor Park. Mr. Molina has been in full compliance 
with the terms of his current Agreement and he is requesting a 
renewal of his Agreement for another year. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
  
1. Proposed Second Amendment to Personal Services Agreement with 
Mr. Fernando Molina. 
 
2. Letter dated June 28, 2012 from Mr. Fernando Molina Requesting a 
Renewal (Extended Term) of his Current Agreement. 
 

Page 168 of 254



Page 169 of 254

ldeering
Text Box
Attachment 1



Page 170 of 254



Page 171 of 254

ldeering
Text Box
Attachment 2



 
ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 
AGENDA ITEM H-3 

 
Date: July 10, 2012 
 
To: Honorable Board of Directors 
 
From: Consulting General Manager 
 
Subject: AMENDMENT- STREET SWEEPING AGREEMENT- 
  R. F. DICKSON CO. INC.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Provide direction to General Manager regarding request from R. F. 
Dickson Co. for contract amendment. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
On June, 14, 2011, the Board approved an amendment to R. F. Dickson 
Co. for a new three-year term. The contractor requested an increase of 
3.1% for the first year stating that they had held their rates for the 
previous three years. Instead, the Board approved no increase for the 
first year and CPI increase for the third year. 
 
In May of this year, the contractor requested a 2.5% increase. General 
Counsel opined that District was not obligated to amend the 
Agreement and that the contractor was obligated to perform as 
provided for in the Agreement. Steve Dickson, President of the firm 
has asked that this matter be brought to the Board for your 
consideration of their request. It should be noted that the street 
sweeping contract with the County fully reimburses the District for 
costs incurred with the contractor. Mr. Dickson wishes to address the 
Board on this matter. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
1. Amended and Restated Contract Services Agreement for Street 
Sweeping. 
 
2.  Excerpt from the June 14, 2011 Board Meeting Minutes re: Action 
Taken by the Board. 
 

Page 172 of 254



3. Letter dated May 24, 2011 from R. F. Dickson Co, Inc. re: Request to 
Extend Current Agreement for an Additional Three Year Term. 
 
4. Letter dated May 16, 2012 from R. F. Dickson Co. Inc. re: Request 
for 2.5% Increase to their Current Rate. 
 
5. Email dated May 16, 2012 from General Counsel Re: Street Sweeping 
Agreement. 

Page 173 of 254



Page 174 of 254

ldeering
Text Box
Attachment 1



Page 175 of 254



Page 176 of 254



Page 177 of 254



Page 178 of 254



Page 179 of 254



Page 180 of 254



Page 181 of 254



Page 182 of 254

ldeering
Text Box
Attachment 2



Page 183 of 254

ldeering
Text Box
Attachment 3



Page 184 of 254

ldeering
Text Box
Attachment 4



Page 185 of 254

ldeering
Text Box
Attachment 5



 
ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM H-4 
  

 
Date: July 10, 2012 
 
To: Honorable Board of Directors 
 
From: Consulting General Manager 
 
Subject: HIRING OF TEMPORARY PART-TIME ASSISTANT 

RECREATION LEADER 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Authorize General Manager to hire a temporary part-time Assistant 
Recreation Leader 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
As you know, the District’s Recreation Leader, Chris Argueta, is on 
medical leave. He had been scheduled to also assist the District’s Park 
Superintendent due to the departure of our Maintenance Assistant. His 
absence results in a shortage of staff for both Superintendents.  
 
Assistant Recreation Leader Chris Deaton is currently filling the part-
time Maintenance Assistant role. We have also hired Ms. Chelsea 
Arnett as an Event Attendent in a previously authorized slot to assist 
the Recreation Superintendant until Mr. Chris Argueta is released for 
duty by his physician and there is a determination as to his 
limitations, if any. This request is to hire Ms. Arnett into a proper 
classification. Attached is her Application for Employment. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
  
1. Application For Employment-Chelsea Arnett. 
 

Page 186 of 254



Page 187 of 254



Page 188 of 254



Page 189 of 254



Page 190 of 254



Page 191 of 254



 
ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM H-5 
  

 
Date: July 10, 2012 
 
To: Honorable Board of Directors 
 
From: Consulting General Manager 
 
Subject: EXECUTE AGREEMENT WITH WEST COAST ELECTRIC FOR 

ELECTRICAL REPAIRS TO RUSH PARK AUDITORIUM 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Authorize General Manager to execute Agreement with West Coast 
Electric to perform electrical repairs to the Rush Park Auditorium 
lighting system.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
As you know, the District has upgraded the lighting and audio 
systems for the Auditorium, particularly that portion of the facility 
used for Board meetings. During that upgrade, note was made of a 
need to upgrade the lighting in the perimeter areas of the Auditorium 
that were not part of the original project. Specifically, ceiling lighting 
circuits in those areas showed evidence of overheating and damage to 
the insulation. These were temporarily repaired as a precaution to 
prevent further damage. 
 
Further, the current light fixtures are in need of replacement due to 
age and obsolescence. Light bulbs for these fixtures are being phased 
out by manufacturers and will soon  become unavailable. Moreover, a 
need was identified for emergency lighting and lighted exit signage. 
This currently exists in the center portion of the building. 
 
This project is in the current FY 2011-2012 CIP Project List and Fund 
40 Budget. The CIP Committee is recommending that we proceed with 
the project as a part of the FY 2012-2013 Project List. The total cost of 
the project is estimated at $21,000 with some exclusions. There is, 
however, a possibility of rebates which could lower the cost. 
 

Page 192 of 254



ATTACHMENTS: 
  
1. FY 2012-2013 Fund 40 Project List and Budget. 
 
2. Proposal from West Coast Electric, LLC. 
 

Page 193 of 254



Page 194 of 254

ldeering
Text Box
Attachment 1



 Page 1 

Proposal                                    

To:          Henry Taboada, R.C.S.D. General Manager 

From:  West Coast Electric 

Date:  7/2/2012 

Re:  Rush Park Auditorium Lighting upgrade 

Henry - Following is the updated pricing to replace the old existing “drop-in” fixtures in the Auditorium and to upgrade the Emergency lighting. 

 

#1) Demo existing (84) fixtures and replace with (66) new Prismatic lens fixtures, using (3) x 32 watt T-8 lamp units. Cost is $14,000.00 

 

#2) Upgrade the Emergency Egress lighting fixtures throughout the Auditorium. Includes R & R all existing EXIT fixtures with combination 
EXIT/”Bugeye” types similar to those installed adjacent to the stage, and installation of new “Bugeye” fixtures in the cordoned off areas of the 
Auditorium and in the Bathrooms. This is for (23) fixtures total. Cost is $4,500.00 

#3) Electrical Engineering / Title 24 calculations costs - $3,000 

 

Total for #1 & #2 & #3 is $21,500.00  

 

 

 

      

WEST COAST ELECTRIC 
11632 Paseo Bonita 
Los Alamitos, Ca.  90720 
Office- (562) 493-7502 

Mobile- (310) 612-9449 

Fax- (562) 493-7503 

Contractors License  C-10  #389647 

Page 195 of 254

ldeering
Text Box
Attachment 2



 Page 2 

 
 
 
Notes-  
 
County Permit/Planning Fees not included.    
      
Wall & Ceiling surface repair may be required, but is not included in our 
price. I don't think there will be any, but it's always a possibility. 

We did not include the cost of any necessary replacement ceiling tiles in our 
bid     
      
Minor repairs to the existing lighting electrical wiring to include a 
review of existing conditions and necessary repairs or rewiring to 
ensure the circuits will support the lighting load is included      
  
  
#1 upgraded to a Parabolic lens for a fresh look, add $1,000.00      
      
  
      
      
   
   
      
   
    

 

Page 196 of 254



 
 

ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

AGENDA ITEM H-6  
 

 
Date: July 10, 2012  
 
To: Honorable Board of Directors 
 
From: Consulting General Manager 
 
Subject: SECOND READING TO RESTRUCTURING OF BOARD 

POLICIES RE: DISTRICT PARKS, FIELDS AND FACILITIES 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
  
Give second reading to proposed amendments to Policy No. 6010 
Requests for Use of District Property, Policy No. 6011 Rules and 
Regulations for the Use of District Property, Proposed naming and 
renumbering of Policy No. 6012 to Policy No. 6013 Joint Use of 
District Property for District Sponsored Programs, Proposed new 
Policy No. 6012 Group Picnics, Public Gatherings and Special Events, 
Policy No. 6015 Establishment of Fees and Charges for Use of District 
Parks, Buildings and Facilities, and Policy No. 6050 Facilities – Tennis 
Courts..  
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
You may recall that the District recently adopted a Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) between the District, the Los Alamitos Girls 
Softball League (LAGSL) and the Rossmoor Park Neighborhood (RPN). A 
key element of the MOU was the undertaking by the District of 
amendments to policies relating to the use and administration of the 
District property.  
 
The proposed changes to policy are being recommended in order to 
provide additional clarity to the District’s administration of the use of 
its recreational facilities as it relates to their use, as well as an attempt 
to mitigate impacts to neighboring communities. These changes are 
not intended to limit the use of these facilities, but rather, provide 
some gauge of their use, particularly by long-term users and larger 
one-time users, as a means of properly maintaining these facilities 

Page 197 of 254



and limiting to the degree practicable, the impacts from noise, 
congestion and traffic.  
 
As directed by the Board, The Park Policy Committee met and 
discussed the use of District property. The discussion resulted in no 
recommended changes to the District’s administration and use of its 
property. The proposed policies were also discussed with the MOU 
Committee on June 27, 2012. No changes are recommended as a result 
of that meeting.  
 
Following is a brief summary of the proposed new policies and 
amendments to existing policies.  
 
The recommended changes to Policy No. 6010 better define the User 
Permit procedures, conditions and its limitations. 
 
The recommended changes to Policy No. 6011 better defines the rules 
and regulations for the use of District property and adds references 
for limitations and prohibited uses for all persons and groups.  
 
The recommended renaming and renumbering of current Policy No. 
2012 provides consistency of terms and sequencing of policies.  
 
The proposed new Policy No. 6012 provides a grouping of procedures 
for group picnics, public gatherings and special events not previously 
addressed in other policies. 
 
Minor changes to Policy No. 6015 update the fee schedule procedures 
for consistency with current operation of District property which 
includes a $50 filing fee for Special Events.    
 
Minor revisions to Policy No. 6050 update the changes to the 
reservation schedule of tennis play.  
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 
1. Policy No. 6010 Requests for Use of District Parks and Facilities. 
 a. Current 
 b. Redline 
 c. Proposed 
 
2. Policy No. 6011 Rules and Regulations for the Use of District 
Property. 
 a. Current 
 b. Redline 

Page 198 of 254



 c. Proposed 
 
3. Policy No. 6012 Group Picnics, Public Gatherings and Special 
Events. 
 a. Proposed 
 
4. Previous Policy No. 6012 renumbered and renamed as Policy No. 
6013. 
 a. Current 
 b. Proposed 
 
5.  Policy No. 6015 Establishment of Fees and Charges for Use of 
District Property. 
 a. Current 
 b. Redline 
 c. Proposed 
 
6. Policy No. 6050 Facilities – Tennis Courts. 
 a. Proposed 
 b. Redline 
 c. Proposed 
 
 
 
 

Page 199 of 254



  1 

ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

Policy No. 6010 
 

REQUESTS FOR USE OF DISTRICT  PARKS AND FACILITIES 
 
6010.00 Public Parks and Facilities:  Rossmoor Community Services District (District/RCSD) parks 
and facilities include the Montecito Center, Rossmoor Park, Rush Park, Foster Mini-Park and 
Kempton Mini-Park.   These parks and facilities are managed by the District in response to the needs 
of the residents of Rossmoor and are made available for the use of community-based organizations, 
non-profit organizations, private individuals and commercial groups. The aim of the District is to 
provide parks and facilities that are a benefit and source of pride to the entire community. 
 

6010.01 General/Short- Term Use: District parks and facilities may be used by groups, 
individuals or organizations. Uses include, but are not limited to: classes, events and 
cultural, educational, health, self-improvement and sports programs. 

 
6010.02 Dedicated Use: Specific space or rooms within the District may be authorized for 
dedicated use (one to two years) when specifically approved by the Board pursuant to Policy 
No. 6030 Facilities—Dedicated Use. 

6010.03 Long-term Use:  Long-term use shall be limited to between six and twelve months. 
User Requests which do not exceed four days in each month and four hours in each day 
may be authorized by the General Manager. The use of fields shall not exceed 6 
consecutive calendar months. User Permits which exceed these limitations will require 
Board approval.  

 
6010.10 Limitations:  The General Manager shall have the authority to limit the hours of use for all 
events based on the type of activity planned, proximity to homes, the noise level anticipated from the 
attendees and the availability of parking needed to accommodate the event. Use of a park or facility 
by any group or individual shall not exceed eight (8) hours including preparation time, on any one 
day. Unless otherwise approved by the Board, no outdoor events, including preparation time or clean 
up time, in Rush or Rossmoor Park shall be scheduled to begin before 8:00 a.m. or conclude after 
dusk on non-lighted parks and facilities or 10.00 p.m. on lighted parks and facilities. Preparation time 
includes, but is not limited to, any organized activity such as exercising, warming up, practicing, 
preparation of a field for play, preparation of a facility for the event, or any other activity if it generates 
excessive noise. The General Manager shall make such determinations, consistent with this or other 
applicable Board policies. Such determinations may be appealed to the Board as provided in Section 
6010.80. 

 
6010.20  Priority of Use:  The use of District parks and facilities shall be awarded in the following 
order of priority: District sponsored activities; Rossmoor community organizations; Rossmoor 
residents; other organizations or individuals. Also, organizations currently using District facilities will 
be given the right of first refusal or to renew their current usage in accordance with the latest fee 
schedule. The General Manager may require documentation to authenticate the addresses and 
identities of the requester and his/her organization. 
 
6010.30 Sunday Organized Use:  Permits for Sunday organized use of playing fields, other than 
make-up games, will require approval of the Board. Organized use is defined as any group which is 
a member of a league or association whose primary purpose is to participate in a recreational activity 
which has scheduled or regular play and can be identified by a uniform or other recognizable apparel 
or equipment which would indicate that the participants are a part of organized play. Use of a facility 
by an informal gathering such as a family or a social gathering is not considered organized play 
within the meaning of this policy. 

Page 200 of 254

ldeering
Text Box
Attachment 1

ldeering
Text Box
CURRENT



  2 

6010.40 User Permit Procedures:  An applicant for a User Permit must be 18 years of age (See 
Policy 6060.30) in order to apply for the use of a park or facility. The permittee shall make the 
application on forms provided by the District, accompanied by a processing fee. See Policy No. 6015 
Establishment of Fees And Charges For Use Of District Parks, Buildings and Facilities.  It is the 
responsibility of the person in charge of the event, as identified on the User Permit, to enforce the 
rules of this policy.  Failure to enforce the rules of the District’s policies is immediate grounds for 
revocation of a User Permit. 
 

6010.41 Permit Requests and Deposits:  A request for a User Permit should be received by 
the District a minimum of ten (10) calendar days prior to the requested date and may be 
submitted six (6) months prior to the requested date. A “reservation” fee will be required to 
be paid at the time the User Permit is submitted and all other required fees, in accordance 
with Policy 6015, must be paid at least ten (10) calendar days prior to the scheduled event 
or the request is invalid.  If another applicant requests the same facility or field on the same 
date and time, the original applicant will be notified and requested to pay any unpaid fees 
and if that person does not do so within two (2) business days, the later applicant’s request 
will be honored.  In all cases, fees and deposits paid within ten (10) calendar days of the 
scheduled event must be in cash. 
 
6010.42 Response to Applicants:  Unless otherwise specified, the District will make 
reasonable efforts to respond to applicants within five (5) working days of receipt of 
application unless the request requires Board approval or if the General Manager is required 
to research a particular aspect of a request which is not specifically covered by Board policy. 
In the latter case, every attempt will be made to approve or disapprove a User Permit 
Request in a timely manner. 

 
6010.50 District Indemnification: Application for a User Permit for groups of more than 50 individuals 
wishing to use a field or facility must sign the District’s Hold Harmless Agreement. Applications for 
groups of 150 or more individuals must include a Certificate of Insurance naming the Rossmoor 
Community Services District as additional insured and sign the District’s standard Hold Harmless 
Agreement. Insurance coverage shall include Personal Injury, Property Damage and Automobile 
Liability in an amount of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence / Insurance 
coverage shall also include Worker’s Compensation and Employer’s Liability with limits as required 
by the Labor Code of the State of California, if applicable. 
 
Groups requesting multiple dates of use and any applicants requesting to serve alcohol at Montecito 
Center must then provide a Certificate of Insurance naming the District as additional insured 
regardless of the size of the group.  Applications will not be approved without the required Certificate 
of Insurance and Hold Harmless Agreement first being provided to the District.  The term group as 
used in this policy includes all attendees whether they are participants, fans, observers, guests, or 
invitees of any nature whatsoever. 
 
6010.60 Cancellation of Request By Applicant:  In the event of a cancellation by the applicant, notice 
to the District shall be given as far in advance of the scheduled event as possible. An applicant who 
cancels a reservation may receive a refund for fees or deposits made to the District if the cancellation 
is made at least ten (10) days prior to the scheduled use. The refund will be denied, however, if 
another applicant has requested the same reservation and was denied that reservation because the 
initial applicant was advised of the secondary request and consequently paid all deposits and fees.  
Cancellations that do not meet the ten (10) day calendar deadline, or applications made less than ten 
(10) days in advance of the scheduled event, may receive a partial refund of fees and deposits only if 
the General Manager finds: 
 
     a. The applicant made a reasonably good faith effort to promptly notify the District and the facility 
was subsequently rented for same date and time, or 
 
     b. Extenuating circumstances beyond the applicant’s control justify the refund. 

  

Page 201 of 254



  3 

In all cases, the processing and cancellation fees will be retained by the District. 
 

6010.70   Cancellation by General Manager: Any reservation may be canceled by the General 
Manager if in his/her judgment the event violates any District policy. In the event of such a 
cancellation, notice shall be given to the applicant as far in advance of the scheduled event as 
possible, with a full refund of all fees and deposits made. 
 
6010.80 Appeal to the Board:  An applicant for a User Permit or any other interested person who  
disputes the decision of the General Manager regarding an application or other matter regarding a 
User Permit may appeal that decision to the Board by filing a written request to the General Manager 
for the matter to be placed on the agenda for the next scheduled Board meeting and payment of the 
appeal fee as set forth in the fee schedule. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adopted: October 8, 2002 
Amended: August 10, 2004 
Amended: March 8, 2005 
Amended: August 12, 2008 
Amended: July 14, 2009 
 

Page 202 of 254



1 
  

ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 
Policy No. 6010 
 
 

REQUESTS FOR USE OF DISTRICT PROPERTY PARKS AND 
FACILITIES 

 
6010.00 DistrictPublic Parks and Facilities:  Rossmoor Community Services District 
(District)/RCSD) parks and facilities include the Montecito Center, Rossmoor Park, Rush Park, 
Foster Mini-Park and Kempton Mini-Park.   These parks and facilities are managed by the District in 
response to the needs of the residents of Rossmoor and are made available for the use of 
community-based organizations, non-profit organizations, private individuals and commercial groups. 
The aim of the District is to provide parks and facilities that are a benefit and source of pride to 
the entire community. 
 

6010.01 General/Short- Term Use: District parks and facilities may be used by groups, 
individuals or organizations. Uses include, but are not limited to: classes, events and 
cultural, educational, health, self-improvement and sports programs. 

 
6010.02 Dedicated Use: Specific space or rooms within the District’s buildingsDistrict may 
be authorized for dedicated use (one to two years) when specifically approved by the Board 
pursuant to Policy No. 6030 Facilities—Dedicated Use. 

6010.03 Long-term Use:  Long-term use shall be limited to between six and twelve calendar 
months. User Requests which do not exceed four days in each month and four hours in 
each day may be authorized by the General Manager. The use of fields shall not exceed 6 
consecutive calendar months pursuant to Policy No. 6020—Long-Term Use. User Permits 
which exceed these limitations will require Board approval.  

 
6010.10 Limitations:  The General Manager shall have the authority to limit the hours and/orof use 
for all events based on the type of activity planned based in accordance with Policy No. 6012—
Group Picnics, Public Gatherings and Special Events., proximity to homes, the noise level 
anticipated from the attendees and the availability of parking needed to accommodate the event. Use 
of District Propertya park or facility by any group or individual shall not exceed eight (8) hours 
including preparation time, on any one day. Unless otherwise approved by the Board, no outdoor 
events, including preparation time or clean up time, in Rush or Rossmoor Park shall be scheduled to 
begin before 8:00 a.m. or conclude after dusk on non-lighted parks and facilities or 10.00 p.m. on 
lighted parks and facilities. There will be no lighted reservations for courts past 9:00 p.m..Preparation 
time includes, but is not limited to, any organized activity such as exercising, warming up, practicing, 
preparation of a field for play, preparation of a facility for the event, or any other activity if it generates 
excessive noise. The General Manager shall make such determinations, consistent with this or other 
applicable Board policies. Such determinations may be appealed to the Board as provided in Section 
6010.80. 

 
6010.20  Priority of Use:  The use of District propertyparks and facilities shall be awarded in the 
following order of priority: District sponsored activities; Rossmoor community organizations; 
Rossmoor residents; other organizations or individuals. Also, organizations currently using District 
facilities will be given the right of first refusal or to renew their current usage in accordance with the 

Page 203 of 254

ldeering
Text Box
REDLINE



2 
  

latest fee schedule. The General Manager may require documentation to authenticate the addresses 
and identities of the requester and his/her organization. 
 
6010.30 Sunday Organized Use:  User Permits for Sunday organized use of athletic facilitiesplaying 
fields, other than make-up games, will require approval of the Board. Organized use is defined as 
any group which is a member of a league or association whose primary purpose is to participate in a 
recreational activity which has been scheduled, or regular play and can be identified by a uniform or 
other recognizable apparel or equipment which would indicate that the participants are participating 
in a part of organized play. Use of athletic facilitiesa facility by an informal gathering such as a family 
or a social gathering is not considered organized play within the meaning of this policy. 
 
6010.40 User Permit Procedures:  An applicant for a User Permit must be 18 years of age (See 
Policy No. 6060.30) in order to apply for the use of a park or facility. The permittee shall make the 
requestapplication on forms provided by the District, accompanied by a User Permitprocessing fee. 
See Policy No. 6015 Establishment of Fees And Charges For Use Of District PropertyParks, 
Buildings and Facilities.  It is the responsibility of the person in charge of the event, as identified on 
the User Permit, to enforce the rules of this policy.  Failure to enforce the rules of the District’s 
policies is immediate grounds for revocation of a User Permit. 
 

6010.41 Permit Requests and Deposits:  A request for a User Permit should be received by 
the District a minimum of ten (10) calendar days prior to the requested date and may be 
submitted six (6) months prior to the requested date. A “reservation” fee will be required to 
be paid at the time the User Permit is submitted and all other required fees, in accordance 
with Policy No. 6015, must be paid at least ten (10) calendar days prior to the scheduled 
event or the request is invalid.    If another applicant requests the same facility or field on the 
same date and time, the original applicant will be notified and requested to pay any unpaid 
fees and if that person does not do so within two (2) business days, the later applicant’s 
request will be honored.  In all cases, fees and deposits paid within ten (10) calendar days of 
the scheduled event must be in cash. 
 
6010.42 Response to Applicants:  U nless otherwise specified, the District will make 
reasonable efforts to respond to applicants within five (5) working days of receipt of 
application unless the request requires Board approval or if the General Manager is required 
to research a particular aspect of a request which is not specifically covered by Board policy. 
In the latter case, every attempt will be made to approve or disapprove a User Permit 
Request in a timely manner. 

 
6010.50 District Indemnification-:: Application for a U ser Permit for groups of more than 7550 
individuals wishing to use District property shalla field or facility must sign the District’s Hold 
Harmless Agreement. A user permit issued by the District is required for outdoor gatherings in which 
more than 75 individuals will be present. Applications for outdoor gatheringsgroups of 150 or more 
individuals must include a Certificate of Insurance naming the Rossmoor Community Services 
District as additional insured and also sign the District’s standard Hold Harmless Agreement. 
Insurance coverage shall include Personal Injury, Property Damage and Automobile Liability in an 
amount of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence. / Insurance coverage shall 
also include Worker’s Compensation and Employer’s Liability with limits as required by the Labor 
Code of the State of California, if applicable. 
 
Groups requesting multiple dates of use and any applicants requesting to serve alcohol at Montecito 
Center must then provide a Certificate of Insurance naming the District as additional insured 
regardless of the size of the group.    Applications will not be approved without the required 
Certificate of Insurance and Hold Harmless Agreement first being provided to the District.  The term 
group as used in this policy includes all attendees whether they are participants, fans, observers, 
guests, or invitees of any nature whatsoever. 
 

Page 204 of 254



3 
  

District sponsored events are exempt from the permitting requirements outlined in Policy No. 
6010.50—District Indemnification. 
 
6010.60 Cancellation of Request By Applicant:  In the event of a cancellation by the applicant, notice 
to the District shall be given as far in advance of the scheduled event as possible. An applicant who 
cancels a reservation may receive a refund for fees or refundable deposits made to the District if the 
cancellation is made at least ten (10) days prior to the scheduled event, lessuse. The refund will be 
denied, however, if another applicant has requested the ‘same reservation fee’. A cancellationand 
was denied that reservation because the initial applicant was advised of the secondary request and 
consequently paid all deposits and fees.  Cancellations that do not meet the ten (10) day calendar 
deadline, or applications made less than ten (10) days prior toin advance of the scheduled event will 
result in forfeiture of hourly rate fees in addition to the reservation fee (security deposit will be 
refunded). If an extenuating circumstance occurs, renter , may fill outreceive a partial refund 
applicationof fees and submit it todeposits only if the General Manager within 30 days of scheduled 
event date. General Manager may require additional documents to be submitted.  finds: 
 
     a. The applicant made a reasonably good faith effort to promptly notify the District and the facility 
was subsequently rented for same date and time, or 
 
     b. Extenuating circumstances beyond the applicant’s control justify the refund. 

  
In all cases, the processing and cancellation fees will be retained by the District. 

 
6010.70   Cancellation by General Manager: Any reservation may be canceled by the General 
Manager if in his/her judgment the event parameters change in a manner that results in a violation 
ofviolates any District policiespolicy. In the event of such a cancellation, notice shall be given to the 
applicant as far in advance of the scheduled event as possible, with a full refund of all fees and 
deposits made less the “reservation fee.”. 
 
6010.80 Appeal to the Board:  An applicant for a User Permit or any other interested person who  
disputes the decision of the General Manager regarding an application or other matter regarding a 
User Permit may appeal that decision to the Board by filing a written request to the General Manager 
for the matter to be placed on the agenda for the next scheduled Board meeting and payment of the 
appeal fee as set forth in the fee schedule. 

 
 
 

6010.90  General Conditions for User Permits: Following are general conditions pertaining to the 
use of District property. These conditions are not all inclusive and the General Manager may use 
his or her professional and reasonable discretion, within his/her authority, concerning the safe 
and proper utilization of such buildings and facilities. Special conditions imposed by the General 
Manager are binding and shall be noted on the User Permit, 

 
6010.91  Minors: All individuals under eighteen (18) years of age shall be deemed to be 
minors.  Events where the majority of attendees are minors must be chaperoned with a ratio 
of one adult for every ten minors.  
 
 6010.92 Temporary Modification to a Park or Facility: Routine upkeep and maintenance of 
fields and facilities shall be provided by the District. The General Manager, at his/her 
discretion, may authorize a user to perform specialized temporary treatment of District 
property with the user responsible for all costs associated with the specialized treatment. 
The user shall provide written information to the General Manager describing the desired 
temporary treatment, the reason for the treatment and the expected outcome from the 
treatment. Upon expiration of the authorized date of use, the General Manager may require 
the user to reimburse the District for the cost of restoring the District’s property to its original 
state or require the user to conduct such restoration. If District property is allowed to be 
modified for any reason, the user and all contractors retained by the user for such 

Page 205 of 254



4 
  

modifications shall provide a Certificate of Insurance naming the District as additional 
insured for any and all additions, changes, and shall indemnify the District should any harm 
or suits be filed naming the District, the District’s staff or Directors. If District property is 
damaged beyond normal wear and tear, the user shall be billed for the additional cost 
required to make repairs or replacement. 
 
6010.93  Donations: Any donation and/or installation of a building, structure, equipment or 
other  item shall require approval by the Board and upon approval shall become property of 
the District. The District is responsible for the maintenance and upkeep of such item 
following acceptance. 
 
6010.94 Gambling: No gambling activity is permitted within District property. This 
includes any activity whether organized or not which is defined by the State of California 
as gambling. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adopted: October 8, 2002 
Amended: August 10, 2004 
Amended: March 8, 2005 
Amended: August 12, 2008 
Amended: July 14, 2009 
 

Page 206 of 254



1 
 

ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

Policy No. 6010 
 

REQUESTS FOR USE OF DISTRICT PROPERTY 
 
6010.00 District Parks and Facilities:  Rossmoor Community Services District (District) parks and 
facilities are managed by the District in response to the needs of the residents of Rossmoor and are 
made available for the use of community-based organizations, non-profit organizations, private 
individuals and commercial groups. The aim of the District is to provide parks and facilities that are 
a benefit and source of pride to the entire community. 
 

6010.01 General/Short- Term Use: District parks and facilities may be used by groups, 
individuals or organizations. Uses include, but are not limited to: classes, events and 
cultural, educational, health, self-improvement and sports programs. 

 
6010.02 Dedicated Use: Specific space or rooms within the District’s buildings may be 
authorized for dedicated use (one to two years) when specifically approved by the Board 
pursuant to Policy No. 6030 Facilities—Dedicated Use. 

6010.03 Long-term Use:  Long-term use shall be limited to six and twelve calendar months. 
User Requests which do not exceed four days in each month and four hours in each day 
may be aut horized by the General Manager. The use of fields shall not exceed 6 
consecutive calendar months pursuant to Policy No. 6020—Long-Term Use.  

 
6010.10 Limitations:  The General Manager shall have the authority to limit the hours and/or use for 
all events based on the type of activity planned based in accordance with Policy No. 6012—Group 
Picnics, Public Gatherings and Special Events. Use of District Property by any group or individual 
shall not exceed eight (8) hours including preparation time, on any one day. Unless otherwise 
approved by the Board, no outdoor events, including preparation time or clean up time, in Rush or 
Rossmoor Park shall be scheduled to begin before 8:00 a.m. or conclude after dusk on non-lighted 
parks and facilities or 10.00 p.m. on lighted parks and facilities. There will be no lighted reservations 
for courts past 9:00 p.m.. The General Manager shall make such determinations, consistent with this 
or other applicable Board policies. Such determinations may be appealed to the Board as provided in 
Section 6010.80. 

 
6010.20  Priority of Use:  The use of District property shall be awarded in the following order of 
priority: District sponsored activities; Rossmoor community organizations; Rossmoor residents; other 
organizations or individuals. Also, organizations currently using District facilities will be given the right 
of first refusal or to renew their current usage in accordance with the latest fee schedule.  
 
6010.30 Sunday Organized Use:  User Permits for Sunday organized use of athletic facilities will 
require approval of the Board. Organized use is defined as any group which is a member of a league 
or association whose primary purpose is to participate in a recreational activity which has been 
scheduled, or regular play and can be identified by a uniform or other recognizable apparel or 
equipment which would indicate that the participants are participating in organized play. Use of 
athletic facilities by an informal gathering such as a family or a social gathering is not considered 
organized play within the meaning of this policy. 
 
6010.40 User Permit Procedures:  An applicant for a User Permit must be 18 years of age (See 
Policy No. 6060.30) in order to apply for the use of a park or facility. The permittee shall make the 
request on forms provided by the District, accompanied by a User Permit fee. See Policy No. 6015 

Page 207 of 254

ldeering
Text Box
PROPOSED



2 
 

Establishment of Fees And Charges For Use Of District Property.  It i s the responsibility of the 
person in charge of the event, as identified on the User Permit, to enforce the rules of this policy.  
Failure to enforce the rules of the District’s policies is immediate grounds for revocation of a User 
Permit. 
 

6010.41 Permit Requests and Deposits:  A request for a User Permit should be received by 
the District a minimum of ten (10) calendar days prior to the requested date and may be 
submitted six (6) months prior to the requested date. A “reservation” fee will be required to 
be paid at the time the User Permit is submitted and all other required fees, in accordance 
with Policy No. 6015, must be paid at least ten (10) calendar days prior to the scheduled 
event or the request is invalid.   
 
6010.42 Response to Applicants:  U nless otherwise specified, the District will make 
reasonable efforts to respond to applicants within five (5) working days of receipt of 
application unless the request requires Board approval or if the General Manager is required 
to research a particular aspect of a request which is not specifically covered by Board policy. 
In the latter case, every attempt will be made to approve or disapprove a User Permit 
Request in a timely manner. 

 
6010.50 District Indemnification-: Application for a User Permit for groups of more than 75 individuals 
wishing to use District property shall sign the District’s Hold Harmless Agreement. A user permit 
issued by the District is required for outdoor gatherings in which more than 75 individuals will be 
present. Applications for outdoor gatherings of 150 or more individuals must include a Certificate of 
Insurance naming the Rossmoor Community Services District as additional insured and also sign the 
District’s standard Hold Harmless Agreement. Insurance coverage shall include Personal Injury, 
Property Damage and Automobile Liability in an amount of not less than one million dollars 
($1,000,000) per occurrence. Insurance coverage shall also include Worker’s Compensation and 
Employer’s Liability with limits as required by the Labor Code of the State of California, if applicable. 
 
Groups requesting multiple dates of use must then provide a Certificate of Insurance naming the 
District as additional insured regardless of the size of the group.   
 
District sponsored events are exempt from the permitting requirements outlined in Policy No. 
6010.50—District Indemnification. 
 
6010.60 Cancellation of Request By Applicant:  In the event of a cancellation by the applicant, notice 
to the District shall be given as far in advance of the scheduled event as possible. An applicant who 
cancels a reservation may receive a refund for fees or refundable deposits made to the District if the 
cancellation is made at least ten (10) days prior to the scheduled event, less the ‘reservation fee’. A 
cancellation made less than 10 days prior to the scheduled event will result in forfeiture of hourly rate 
fees in addition to the reservation fee (security deposit will be refunded). If an extenuating 
circumstance occurs, renter may fill out a refund application and submit it to the General Manager 
within 30 days of scheduled event date. General Manager may require additional documents to be 
submitted.   

 
6010.70   Cancellation by General Manager: Any reservation may be canceled by the General 
Manager if in his/her judgment the event parameters change in a manner that results in a violation of 
District policies. In the event of such a cancellation, notice shall be given to the applicant as far in 
advance of the scheduled event as possible, with a full refund of all fees and deposits made less the 
“reservation fee.” 
 
6010.80 Appeal to the Board:  An applicant for a User Permit or any other interested person who  
disputes the decision of the General Manager regarding an application or other matter regarding a 
User Permit may appeal that decision to the Board by filing a written request to the General Manager 
for the matter to be placed on the agenda for the next scheduled Board meeting and payment of the 
appeal fee as set forth in the fee schedule. 

Page 208 of 254



3 
 

 
 
 

6010.90  General Conditions for User Permits: Following are general conditions pertaining to the 
use of District property. These conditions are not all inclusive and the General Manager may use 
his or her professional and reasonable discretion, within his/her authority, concerning the safe 
and proper utilization of such buildings and facilities. Special conditions imposed by the General 
Manager are binding and shall be noted on the User Permit, 

 
6010.91  Minors: All individuals under eighteen (18) years of age shall be deemed to be 
minors.  Events where the majority of attendees are minors must be chaperoned with a ratio 
of one adult for every ten minors.  
 
 6010.92 Temporary Modification to a Park or Facility: Routine upkeep and maintenance of 
fields and facilities shall be provided by the District. The General Manager, at his/her 
discretion, may authorize a user to perform specialized temporary treatment of District 
property with the user responsible for all costs associated with the specialized treatment. 
The user shall provide written information to the General Manager describing the desired 
temporary treatment, the reason for the treatment and the expected outcome from the 
treatment. Upon expiration of the authorized date of use, the General Manager may require 
the user to reimburse the District for the cost of restoring the District’s property to its original 
state or require the user to conduct such restoration. If District property is allowed to be 
modified for any reason, the user and all contractors retained by the user for such 
modifications shall provide a Certificate of Insurance naming the District as additional 
insured for any and all additions, changes, and shall indemnify the District should any harm 
or suits be filed naming the District, the District’s staff or Directors. If D istrict property is 
damaged beyond normal wear and tear, the user shall be billed for the additional cost 
required to make repairs or replacement. 
 
6010.93  Donations: Any donation and/or installation of a building, structure, equipment or 
other  item shall require approval by the Board and upon approval shall become property of 
the District. The District is responsible for the maintenance and upkeep of such item 
following acceptance. 
 
6010.94 Gambling: No gambling activity is permitted within District property. This 
includes any activity whether organized or not which is defined by the State of California 
as gambling. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adopted: October 8, 2002 
Amended: August 10, 2004 
Amended: March 8, 2005 
Amended: August 12, 2008 
Amended: July 14, 2009 

Page 209 of 254



  
   

1 

Rossmoor Community Services District 
 
 

Policy No. 6011 
 

RULES AND REGULATIONS FOR THE USE OF DISTRICT PROPERTY 
 
 
6011.00 Purpose: The purpose of this policy is to provide for the orderly administration and control of the 
parks and buildings within the District and establish rules and regulations to provide a safe and enjoyable 
environment for those using these facilities. 
 
6011.10 Definitions:  For the purpose of this policy the following terms shall have the respective meanings 
set forth herein, unless the context in which they are used clearly indicates to the contrary: 
 

6011.11 Alcoholic Beverage: Alcohol, spirits, liquor, wine, beer and every liquid or solid 
containing one-half of one (0.5) per cent or more of alcohol by volume and which is fit for 
beverage purposes either alone or when diluted, mixed or combined with other substances.  

 
6011.12 Board:  The Board of Directors of the Rossmoor Community Services District. 

 
6011.13 District:  The Rossmoor Community Services District 
 
6011.14 District Property: Every park and mini-park, building, facility, or vehicle parking area 
owned, managed or controlled by the District.   

 
6011.15 Eviction:  Revocation of any permit or permission to use a park and expulsion from such 
park or facility.   

 
6011.16 General Manager:  The General Manager of the District. 
 
6011.17 Group  “Group” means all Persons subject to the same permit.   

 
6011.18 Person: Person means every individual, corporation, partnership, limited liability 
company, joint venture, association, social club, fraternal organization or any other group or 
combination of individuals including spectators.  

 
6011.20 Management of District Facilities:   The General Manager shall administer this policy or other 
related policies in such a w ay as to achieve the maximum benefit to the residents of Rossmoor and 
visitors. This policy shall be enforced by the General Manager and such of his/her agents as he/she may 
designate to perform said duty, as well as by any peace officer(s) having jurisdiction of any area in which 
a violation of any provision of this policy or other related policies may take place. 
 
6011.30 Compliance: The privilege of any Person to use District parks and facilities is expressly 
conditioned upon compliance by that Person with the provisions of this policy as they apply to such use.  
Violation of any provision of this policy shall subject the Person violating to eviction from the park or 
facility in which the violation occurs and other parks or facilities, if deemed necessary.   
 
6011.40 Hours of Operation:  All parks shall be open to the public during the hours of 7:00 a.m. to 10:00 
p.m.  No Person shall enter or remain in any of the parks at any time other than during such hours as the 
park is open to the public except for emergency maintenance or by the District, its contractors, or for law 
enforcement officers.  
 

Page 210 of 254

ldeering
Text Box
Attachment 2

ldeering
Text Box
CURRENT



6011.50 Vending and Commercial Solicitation; Authorization Required:  No Person shall solicit primarily 
for commercial purposes in any manner, or sell or offer for sale any goods, wares, merchandise or food 
products, or offer services for compensation, or distribute or pass out any primarily commercial handbill or 
advertising material within any park without a w ritten authorization from the General Manager. This 
section does not apply to any concession operated under authority granted by the Board. 
 
6011.60 Eviction:   
 

6011.61 Person Subject to Eviction: A Person is subject to eviction from a park when all of the 
 following conditions occur:   
 

• The Person is in violation of a park rule or regulation. 
• The Person has been warned in a manner that is reasonably calculated to reach said 

Person that eviction may result from any further violation. 
• After receiving such warning, a further violation occurs. 
• Imposition of a lesser sanction will not reasonably suffice to cure the existing or ongoing 

violation of this policy. 
• Where a violation of this policy is of such magnitude or seriousness as to pose an 

immediate threat of violence or other disruption of the public health, safety or welfare, no 
warning will be necessary prior to eviction. 

 
6011.62 Person or Group Subject to Eviction: A Person or Group is subject to eviction from a 
park when any one of the following conditions occur and no lesser sanction reasonably appears 
to suffice: 

• There is probable cause to believe that an unlawful assembly* exists pursuant to 
California Penal Code Section 407, as determined by an officer of the law. 

• There is a clear and present danger of imminent violence which cannot reasonably be 
forestalled without eviction. 

• There exists a Group sponsored or organized activity which violates one or more park 
rules and regulations and such Group sponsored organized activity has not ceased as a 
result of one or more warnings given to the group as a whole. 

• There are multiple individual violations of park rules and regulations which have not 
stopped following the eviction of one or more such individual violators and violations 
continue after the Group has had a reasonable opportunity to cure them. 

 
6011.70 Group Picnics or Public Gatherings-User Permit Required:  No Person shall cause any picnic or 
public gathering involving the attendance of more than fifty (50) individuals to be held in any park without 
first obtaining a User Permit and signing the District’s Indemnification form. User Permits will be issued on 
a first come, first served basis. Permits will continue to be issued until previously issued permits have 
exhausted the capacity of the park sought to be used. 

 
6011.71 Group Picnics or Public Gatherings-District Certificate of Insurance Required:  Picnics or 
public gatherings numbering 150 attendees or more must also secure a User Permit from the 
District on a first come, first served basis. Such groups must also obtain a certificate of insurance 
policy of at least $1,000,000 naming the District as an additional insured. 
 
6011.72 Reserving Park Spaces: Any user groups desiring to reserve a designated space in a 
park for a picnic or public gathering may do so by obtaining a User Permit, paying the fees called 
out in the District’s Fee Schedule and signing the District’s indemnification form. Groups of 150 or 
more persons must also meet the insurance requirements indicated above. Reservations may be 
made no more than six (6) months in advance for residents and no more than (3) months in 
advance for non-residents. 
 
 
* An unlawful assembly is defined as follows: Whenever two or more person assemble and acting together to do an 
unlawful act, or to do a lawful act in a violent, boisterous or tumultuous manner, such assembly is an unlawful assembly 

Page 211 of 254



  
   

3 

 
 

6011.80 Denial of a User Permit: The General Manager may decline to issue a permit when he/she 
determines that the Person or Group applying, has within the preceding twelve (12) months conducted 
previous similar events in parks operated by the District and such events have resulted in noise or other 
activities which disturbed other users of the parks or residents adjacent to the park, or where the 
applicant has, or members of his/her Group have, been evicted from a park, or where there was 
substantial damage to the park.  If the General Manager declines to issue a permit he/she shall so notify 
the applicant in writing and set forth the reasons why a permit was not issued. 

 
6011.81  Appeal to the Board: An applicant or other interested Person who disputes the decision 
of the General Manager regarding a User Permit Application may appeal that decision to the 
Board by filing a written request to the General Manager for the matter to be placed on the 
agenda for the next scheduled Board meeting, and paying a reasonable fee. 
   

6011.90  General Conditions for User Permits: Following are general conditions pertaining to the use of 
District Buildings and Facilities. These conditions are not all inclusive and the General Manager may use 
his or her professional and reasonable discretion, within his/her authority, concerning the safe and proper 
utilization of such buildings and facilities. Special conditions imposed by the General Manager shall be 
noted on the User Permit and are binding. 

 
6011.91  Minors: All individuals under eighteen (18) years of age shall be deemed to be minors.  
Events where the majority of attendees are minors must be chaperoned with a ratio of one adult for 
every ten minors.  
 
6011.92  Designated Areas: Groups are confined to the area(s) designated in the permit such as ball 
diamonds, soccer fields and reserves park spaces, as determined by the General Manager.  
 
6011.93  Facility Use: No objects are to be attached to ceilings windows or walls nor are any type of 
nails, staples, tape, etc. permitted on ceilings, windows or walls of any District facility. 
 
 6011.94 Temporary Modification to a Park or Facility: Routine upkeep and maintenance of fields 
and facilities will be provided by the District. The General Manager, at his/her discretion, may 
authorize a user to perform specialized temporary treatment of a District park or facility with the user 
responsible for all costs associated with the specialized treatment. The user shall provide written 
information to the General Manager describing the desired temporary treatment, the reason for the 
treatment and the expected outcome from the treatment. Upon expiration of the authorized date of 
use, the General Manager may require the user to reimburse the District for the cost of restoring the 
District’s park or facility to its original state or require the user to conduct such restoration. If a park or 
facility is allowed to be modified for any reason, the user and all contractors retained by the user for 
such modifications will be responsible to provide a Certificate of Insurance naming the District as 
additional insured for any and all additions, changes, and shall indemnify the District should any 
harm or suits be filed naming the District, the District’s staff or Directors. If District parks or facilities 
are damaged beyond normal wear and tear, the user will be billed for the additional cost required to 
make repairs or replacement. 
 
6011.95  Donations: Any donation and/or installation of a building, structure, equipment or other   
item shall require approval by the Board and upon approval shall become property of the District. 
The District is responsible for the maintenance and upkeep of such item following acceptance. 
 

 6011.96 Vehicles:  No vehicles, motor-driven cycles, motorcycles, trucks or other vehicles are 
permitted within a park or on the sidewalk adjacent to any park without the prior authorization of the 
General Manager or Park Superintendent. 
 

 6011.97  Clean-up Following Use:  Clean up of indoor and outdoor park facilities and replacing tables 
and/or chairs is the responsibility of the user. Users are required to clean up park and facility used, 

Page 212 of 254



  
   

4 

wipe counters and equipment, clean up any spillage and remove all supplies not provided by the 
District. Users should report any malfunctioning equipment to the District Office for 
repair/replacement.  If cleanup is not accomplished at an acceptable standard and the use of 
District employees is required to meet an acceptable standard, an appropriate amount will be 
withheld from the deposit at the discretion of the General Manager to cover the additional labor 
and material costs. See Policy No. 6015 Establishment of Fees and Charges for Use of District 
Buildings and Facilities. 

 
6011.98 Skateboards, Roller Skates:  No person shall ride a skateboard, roller skates or other 
conveyance whether propelled by motorized or human power or cause or permit same to roll or 
coast within any park area where the District has posted signs to prohibit such activity. 
 
6011.99 Alcoholic Beverages:  No Person shall consume any alcoholic beverage within the limits 
of any park, building, or building.  
 
6011.100 Firearms, Weapons, Fireworks:  No person shall have any fireworks, rockets, 
explosives, firearms, air gun, BB gun, slingshot, bow, hunting arrow or any weapon in his/her 
possession while within any park, or in any vehicle other than in a c losed trunk or storage 
compartment while such vehicle is within the jurisdiction of the District.  Nor shall any person 
discharge any fireworks, rockets, explosives, or weapons in any park or building. 

 
6011.101 Domestic Animals:  No person having custody of a cat, dog, or other domestic animal 
shall allow such animal in any park area without the ability to produce evidence that the animal is 
currently licensed as required by any other provision of law and provided such animal is 
restrained by a substantial leash not to exceed six (6) feet in length and is in the charge of a 
person competent to restrain such animal. All persons having charge of such animals shall 
immediately remove and dispose of in a sanitary manner, by placing in a closed or sealed 
container and depositing in a trash receptacle, any feces deposited by such animal upon any park 
property.  The provisions of the section shall not apply to unsighted persons being accompanied 
by a guide dog. 

 
This section shall not prevent the District from holding supervised public events in its parks in 
which domestic animals participate, nor shall this section prohibit the General Manager from 
issuing User Permits for group activities wherein dogs or cats will be under the responsible care 
of a person while not restrained by a leash while participating in a permitted event. Approvals for 
events in which animals other than dogs and cats participate are subject to specific approvals and 
conditions as determined by the General Manager. 

 
6011.102 Golfing:  No person shall use a golf club or similar device to strike, hit, or similarly 
propel a golf ball within the boundaries of any park. 

 
6011.103 Unsafe Activity:  No person shall engage in any activity in any park which may 
endanger the health, safety or welfare of any other person in a park. 

 
6011.104 Rental Fees and Charges: See Policy No. 6015 Establishment of Fees and Charges for 
Use of District Parks, Buildings and Facilities. 
 
6011.105 Amplified Sound: The use of amplification of sound is not permitted except  as 
authorized by the General Manager. 
 
6011.106 Smoking: Smoking of any substance by any means, including cigarettes, cigars, pipes 
or other devices is not permitted in any park, building or facility. Use of barbeques at Rossmoor 
Park and Rush Park is permitted. 
 
6011.107 Gambling: No gambling activity is permitted in any District facility or park. This includes 
any activity whether organized or not which is defined by the State of California as gambling. 

 

Page 213 of 254



  
   

5 

 
6011.108 Inflatable Devices: Devices which require inflation by mechanical means or 
compressed gas containers, commonly called “bouncers” or “jumpers” are not permitted in any 
District park or facility unless the Group has provided to the District a certificate of insurance for at 
least $1,000,000, naming the District as an additional insured. Helium filled balloons are not 
permitted in the Rush Park Auditorium. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adopted:  Resolution 94-4, April 13, 1994 
Approved renumbering & format:  October 8, 2002 
Reaffirmed:  June 10, 2003 
Amended:  August 12, 2008 
Amended: September 8, 2009 
Amended: October 13, 2009 

 

 

Page 214 of 254



1 
 

ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

Rossmoor Community Services District 
 
 

Policy No. 6011 
 

 
RULES AND REGULATIONS FOR THE USE OF DISTRICT PROPERTY 

 
 
 
6011.00 Purpose: The purpose of this policy is to provide for the orderly administration and control of 
District propertythe parks and buildings within the District and establish rules and regulations to provide a 
safe and enjoyable environment for those using these facilities. 
 
6011.10 Definitions:  For the purpose of this policy the following terms shall have the respective meanings 
set forth herein, unless the context in which they are used clearly indicates to the contrary: 
 

6011.11 Alcoholic Beverage: Alcohol, spirits, liquor, wine, beer and every liquid or solid 
containing one-half of one (0.5) per cent or more of alcohol by volume and which is fit for 
beverage purposes either alone or when diluted, mixed or combined with other substances.  

 
6011.12 Board:  The Board of Directors of the Rossmoor Community Services District. 

 
6011.13 District:  The Rossmoor Community Services District 
 
6011.14 District Property: Every park and mini-park, building, facility, court, field or vehicle 

 parking area owned, managed or controlled by the District. 
 
6011.15 Facility: May include any or all of the following: Rush Park Auditorium, East Room, West 

 Room, Administration Building, kitchens, Rossmoor Park Community Center, Montecito Center. 
 

6011.16 owned, managed or controlled by the District.   
 

6011.15 Eviction:  Revocation of any permit or permission to use a park and expulsion from 
District property.such park or facility.   

 
6011.1716 General Manager:  The General Manager of the District. 
 
6011.1817 Group  “Group” means all Persons subject to the same permit.   

 
6011.1918 Person: Person means every individual, corporation, partnership, limited liability 
company, joint venture, association, social club, fraternal organization or any other Groupgroup or 
combination of individuals including spectators.  
 
6011.12 User Permit: District approved written permission for event or function to take place on 
District property.  

 
6011.20 Management of District PropertyFacilities:   The General Manager shall administer this policy or 
other related policies in such a way as to achieve the maximum benefit to the residents of Rossmoor and 

Page 215 of 254

ldeering
Text Box
REDLINE



2 
 

visitors. This policy shall be enforced by the General Manager and such of his/her agents as he/she may 
designate to perform said duty, as well as by any peace officer(s) having jurisdiction of any area in which 
a violation of any provision of this policy or other related policies may take place. 
 
6011.30 Compliance: The privilege of any Person to use District propertyparks and facilities is expressly 
conditioned upon compliance by that Person with the provisions of this policy as they apply to such use.  
Violation of any provision of this policy shall subject the Person violating to eviction from the park or 
facility in which the violation occurs and other District propertyparks or facilities, if deemed necessary.   
 
6011.40 Hours of Operation:  All parks shall be open to the public during the hours of 7:00 a.m. to 10:00 
p.m.  No Person shall enter or remain in any of the parks at any time other than during such hours as the 
park is open to the public except for emergency maintenance or by the District, its contractors, or for law 
enforcement officers or for District sponsored events accept as otherwise limited by Policy No. 6010.10—
Limitations. 
 
6011.50 Vending and Commercial Solicitation; PermitAuthorization Required:  No Person shall solicit 
primarily for commercial purposes in any manner, or sell or offer for sale any goods, wares, merchandise 
or food products, or offer services for compensation, or distribute or pass out any primarily commercial 
handbill or advertising material within or about any park without a written authorization from the General 
Manager, provided however, that this. This section does not apply to any concession operated under 
authority granted by the Board. 
 
6011.60 Eviction:   
 

6011.61 Person Subject to Eviction: A Person is subject to eviction from a park when all of the 
 following conditions occur:   
 

• The Person is in violation of a park rule or regulation. 
• The Person has been warned in a manner that is reasonably calculated to reach said 

Person that eviction may result from any further violation. 
• After receiving such warning, a further violation occurs. 
• Imposition of a lesser sanction will not reasonably suffice to cure the existing or ongoing 

violation of this policy. 
• Where a violation of this policy is of such magnitude or seriousness as to pose an 

immediate threat of violence or other disruption of the public health, safety or welfare, no 
warning will be necessary prior to eviction. 

 
6011.62 Person or Group Subject to Eviction: A Person or Group is subject to eviction from a 
park when any one of the following conditions occur and no lesser sanction reasonably appears 
to suffice: 

• There is probable cause to believe that an unlawful assembly* exists pursuant to 
California Penal Code Section 407, as determined by an officer of the law. 

• There is a clear and present danger of imminent violence which cannot reasonably be 
forestalled without eviction. 

• There exists a Group sponsored or organized activity which violates one or more park 
rules and regulations and such Group sponsored organized activity has not ceased as a 
result of one or more warnings given to the group as a whole. 

• There are multiple individual violations of park rules and regulations which have not 
stopped following the eviction of one or more such individual violators and violations 
continue after the Group has had a reasonable opportunity to cure them. 

 
 

6011.78 Unauthorized Motor Vehicles: No Person shall operate an unauthorized motor vehicle, four-wheel 
drive vehicle, motorcycle, motorbike, motor dirt bike, all-terrain vehicle, off highway vehicle or any 
other motorized vehicle within District property except as authorized by the General Manager. 

 

Page 216 of 254



3 
 

6011.786011.70 Group Picnics or Public Gatherings-User Permit Required:  No Person shall cause any 
picnic or public gathering involving the attendance of more than fifty (50) individuals to be held in any park 
without first obtaining a User Permit and signing the District’s Indemnification form. User Permits will be 
issued on a first come, first served basis. Permits will continue to be issued until previously issued permits 
have exhausted the capacity of the park sought to be used. 

 
6011.71 Group Picnics or Public Gatherings-District Certificate of Insurance Required:  Picnics or 
public gatherings numbering 150 attendees or more must also secure a User Permit from the 
District on a first come, first served basis. Such groups must also obtain a certificate of insurance 
policy of at least $1,000,000 naming the District as an additional insured. 
 
6011.72 Reserving Park Spaces: Any user groups desiring to reserve a designated space in a 
park for a picnic or public gathering may do so by obtaining a User Permit, paying the fees called 
out in the District’s Fee Schedule and signing the District’s indemnification form. Groups of 150 or 
more persons must also meet the insurance requirements indicated above. Reservations may be 
made no more than six (6) months in advance for residents and no more than (3) months in 
advance for non-residents. 
 
 
* An unlawful assembly is defined as follows: Whenever two or more person assemble and acting together to do an 
unlawful act, or to do a lawful act in a violent, boisterous or tumultuous manner, such assembly is an unlawful assembly 

 
 

6011.80 Denial of a User Permit: The General Manager may decline to issue a permit when he/she 
determines that the Person or Group applying, has within the preceding twelve (12) months conducted 
previous similar events in parks operated by the District and such events have resulted in noise or other 
activities which disturbed other users of the parks or residents adjacent to the park, or where the 
applicant has, or members of his/her Group have, been evicted from a park, or where there was 
substantial damage to the park.  If the General Manager declines to issue a permit he/she shall so notify 
the applicant in writing and set forth the reasons why a permit was not issued. 

 
6011.81  Appeal to the Board: An applicant or other interested Person who disputes the decision 
of the General Manager regarding a User Permit Application may appeal that decision to the 
Board by filing a written request to the General Manager for the matter to be placed on the 
agenda for the next scheduled Board meeting, and paying a reasonable fee. 
   

6011.90  General Conditions for User Permits: Following are general conditions pertaining to the use of 
District Buildings and Facilities. These conditions are not all inclusive and the General Manager may use 
his or her professional and reasonable discretion, within his/her authority, concerning the safe and proper 
utilization of such buildings and facilities. Special conditions imposed by the General Manager shall be 
noted on the User Permit and are binding. 

 
6011.91  Minors: All individuals under eighteen (18) years of age shall be deemed to be minors.  
Events where the majority of attendees are minors must be chaperoned with a ratio of one adult for 
every ten minors.  
 
6011.92  Designated Areas: Groups are confined to the area(s) designated in the permit such as ball 
diamonds, soccer fields and reserves park spaces, as determined by the General Manager.  
 
6011.93  Facility Use: No objects are to be attached to ceilings windows or walls nor are any type of 
nails, staples, tape, etc. permitted on ceilings, windows or walls of any District facility. 
 
 6011.94 Temporary Modification to a Park or Facility: Routine upkeep and maintenance of fields 
and facilities will be provided by the District. The General Manager, at his/her discretion, may 
authorize a user to perform specialized temporary treatment of a District park or facility with the user 
responsible for all costs associated with the specialized treatment. The user shall provide written 

Page 217 of 254



4 
 

information to the General Manager describing the desired temporary treatment, the reason for the 
treatment and the expected outcome from the treatment. Upon expiration of the authorized date of 
use, the General Manager may require the user to reimburse the District for the cost of restoring the 
District’s park or facility to its original state or require the user to conduct such restoration. If a park or 
facility is allowed to be modified for any reason, the user and all contractors retained by the user for 
such modifications will be responsible to provide a Certificate of Insurance naming the District as 
additional insured for any and all additions, changes, and shall indemnify the District should any 
harm or suits be filed naming the District, the District’s staff or Directors. If District parks or facilities 
are damaged beyond normal wear and tear, the user will be billed for the additional cost required to 
make repairs or replacement. 
 
6011.95  Donations: Any donation and/or installation of a building, structure, equipment or other   
item shall require approval by the Board and upon approval shall become property of the District. 
The District is responsible for the maintenance and upkeep of such item following acceptance. 
 

 6011.96 Vehicles:  No vehicles, motor-driven cycles, motorcycles, trucks or other vehicles are 
permitted within a park or on the sidewalk adjacent to any park without the prior authorization of the 
General Manager or Park Superintendent. 
 

 6011.97  Clean-up Following Use:  Clean up of indoor and outdoor park facilities and replacing tables 
and/or chairs is the responsibility of the user. Users are required to clean up park and facility used, 
wipe counters and equipment, clean up any spillage and remove all supplies not provided by the 
District. Users should report any malfunctioning equipment to the District Office for 
repair/replacement.  If cleanup is not accomplished at an acceptable standard and the use of 
District employees is required to meet an acceptable standard, an appropriate amount will be 
withheld from the deposit at the discretion of the General Manager to cover the additional labor 
and material costs. See Policy No. 6015 Establishment of Fees and Charges for Use of District 
Buildings and Facilities. 

 
6011.98 Skateboards:   , Roller Skates:  No Personperson shall ride a skateboard, roller skates or other 
conveyance whether propelled by motorized or human power or cause or permit same to roll or coast 
within District propertyany park area where the District has posted signs to prohibit such activity. 
 
6011.7999 Alcoholic Beverages:  No Person shall, within the limits of District property, possess or  
consume any alcoholic beverage within the limits of any park, building, or building.  
 
6011.80100 Firearms, Weapons, Fireworks, Replica Firearms::  No Personperson shall have any 
fireworks, rockets, explosives, firearms, replica firearms, air gun, paint ball gun, BB gun, slingshot or, bow 
or, hunting arrow or any weapon in his/her possession on District property, nor while within any park, or in 
any vehicle other than in a closed trunk or storage compartment while such vehicle is within the 
jurisdiction of the District.  Nor shall any person discharge any firearm, fireworks, rockets, explosives, or 
weapon or displayweapons in any replica firearm on District property. park or building. 
 
6011.81 Controlling101 Domestic Animals:   

 
Leash Required. No Person shall allowperson having custody of a cat, dog, or other domestic 
animal in any park unless the shall allow such animal in any park area without the ability to 
produce evidence that the animal is currently licensed as required by any other provision of law 
and provided such animal is restrained at all times by a substantial leash not to exceed six (6) 
feet in length and is in the controlcharge of a person competent to restrain thesuch animal, or 
unless the animal is restrained and enclosed in a cage, crate or similar enclosure. 
 
Animal Wastes. All Personspersons having charge of such animals shall immediately remove and 
properly dispose of animal excreta from any parkin a sanitary manner, by placing in a closed or 
sealed container and depositing in a trash receptacle, any feces deposited by such animal upon 

 

Page 218 of 254



5 
 

any park property.  The provisions of the section shall not apply to unsighted persons being 
accompanied by a guide dog. 
 
Dog Shows. Nothing in thisThis section shall not prevent the District from holding supervised 
public events on District propertyin its parks in which domestic animals participate, nor shall itthis 
section prohibit the General Manager from issuing permitsUser Permits for group activities 
wherein dogs or cats will be under the responsible care of a person while not restrained by a 
leash or enclosed in a cage or similar enclosure while while participating in a permitted canine 
event. 

 
 Approvals for events in which animals other than dogs and cats participate are subject to specific 
approvals and conditions as determined by the General Manager. 

 
6011.82102 Golfing:  No Personperson shall use a golf club or similar device to strike, hit, or similarly 
propel a golf ball within the boundaries of any park. 
 
6011.83103 Unsafe Activity:  No Personperson shall engage in any activity in any park which may 
endanger the health, safety or welfare of any other person in a park. 
 
6011.84 Disorderly Conduct and Noise:

6011.856011.104 Rental Fees and Charges: See Policy No. 6015 Establishment of Fees and Charges for 
Use of District PropertyParks, Buildings and Facilities. 

 No Person shall fight or challenge another person to fight or 
maliciously and willfully disturb another person by loud and unreasonable noise or who uses offensive 
language that is inherently likely to provoke an immediate violent reaction within District property 

 
6011.86 Amplified Sound System, Music and Live Music-Permit Required: No Person or Group shall 
setup, use, operate or maintain an amplified sound system, music and live music within any park without 
first obtaining a User Permit which specifies such is permitted. The General Manager or staff are 
expressly given the authority to determine the maximum amplification permissible in areas designated 
consistent with other persons’ enjoyment of District property. 
 

 
6011.105 Amplified Sound: The use of amplification of sound is not permitted except  as 
authorized by the General Manager. 
 

6011.87 Fire Regulation:
106 Smoking.: Smoking of any substance by any means, including cigarettes, cigars, pipes or 
other devices is not permitted on District property. The General Manager shall post smoking 
regulations at conspicuous locations.  in any park, building or facility. Use of barbeques at 
Rossmoor Park and Rush Park is permitted. 

  

 
Barbecues. Use of barbeques at parks and mini parks is permitted in designated cemented 
areas clear of trees and buildings with prior General Manager authorization. Smokers are 
prohibited. Hot coals may not be disposed of in any parks. 

 
6011.88 
6011.107 Gambling: No gambling activity is permitted in any District facility or park. This includes 
any activity whether organized or not which is defined by the State of California as gambling. 
 

6011.108 Inflatable Devices: Devices which require inflation by mechanical means or compressed gas 
containers, commonly called “bouncers” or “jumpers” are not permitted onin any District propertypark or 
facility unless the Group has provided to the District a certificate of insurance for at least $1,000,000, 
naming the District as an additional insured. “Bouncers” or “jumpers” which require the use of water are 
not permitted. Helium filled balloons are not permitted in the Rush Park Auditorium. 

Page 219 of 254



6 
 

 
6011.89 Electrical Outlets:  No person shall use any outdoor electrical outlets in District parks. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adopted:  Resolution 94-4, April 13, 1994 
Approved renumbering & format:  October 8, 2002 
Reaffirmed:  June 10, 2003 
Amended:  August 12, 2008 
Amended:  September 8, 2009 
Amended: October 13, 2009 

 

 

Page 220 of 254



1 
 

ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

Policy No. 6011 
 

 
RULES AND REGULATIONS FOR USE OF DISTRICT PROPERTY 

 
 
 
6011.00 Purpose: The purpose of this policy is to provide for the orderly administration and control of 
District property within the District and es tablish rules and regulations to provide a safe and enjoyable 
environment for those using these facilities. 
 
6011.10 Definitions:  For the purpose of this policy the following terms shall have the respective meanings 
set forth herein, unless the context in which they are used clearly indicates to the contrary: 
 

6011.11 Alcoholic Beverage: Alcohol, spirits, liquor, wine, beer and every liquid or solid 
containing one-half of one (0.5) per cent or more of alcohol by volume and which is fit for 
beverage purposes either alone or when diluted, mixed or combined with other substances.  

 
6011.12 Board:  The Board of Directors of the Rossmoor Community Services District. 

 
6011.13 District:  The Rossmoor Community Services District 
 
6011.14 District Property: Every park and mini-park, building, facility, court, field or vehicle 

 parking area owned, managed or controlled by the District. 
 
6011.15 Facility: May include any or all of the following: Rush Park Auditorium, East Room, West 

 Room, Administration Building, kitchens, Rossmoor Park Community Center, Montecito Center. 
 

6011.16 Eviction:  Revocation of any permit or permission to use a park and expulsion from 
District property. 

 
6011.17 General Manager:  The General Manager of the District. 
 
6011.18 Group  “Group” means all Persons subject to the same permit.   

 
6011.19 Person: Person means every individual, corporation, partnership, limited liability 
company, joint venture, association, social club, fraternal organization or any other Group or 
combination of individuals including spectators.  
 
6011.12 User Permit: District approved written permission for event or function to take place on 
District property.  

 
6011.20 Management of District Property:   The General Manager shall administer this policy or other 
related policies in such a w ay as to achieve the maximum benefit to the residents of Rossmoor and 
visitors. This policy shall be enforced by the General Manager and such of his/her agents as he/she may 
designate to perform said duty, as well as by any peace officer(s) having jurisdiction of any area in which 
a violation of any provision of this policy or other related policies may take place. 
 
6011.30 Compliance: The privilege of any Person to use District property is expressly conditioned upon 
compliance by that Person with the provisions of this policy as they apply to such use.  Violation of any 
provision of this policy shall subject the Person violating to eviction from the park or facility in which the 
violation occurs and other District property, if deemed necessary.   

Page 221 of 254

ldeering
Text Box
PROPOSED



2 
 

 
6011.40 Hours of Operation:  All parks shall be open to the public during the hours of 7:00 a.m. to 10:00 
p.m.  No Person shall enter or remain in any of the parks at any time other than during such hours as the 
park is open to the public except for emergency maintenance or by the District, its contractors, or for law 
enforcement officers or for District sponsored events accept as otherwise limited by Policy No. 6010.10—
Limitations. 
 
6011.50 Vending and Commercial Solicitation; Permit Required:  No Person shall solicit for commercial 
purposes in any manner, or sell or offer for sale any goods, wares, merchandise or food products, or offer 
services for compensation, or distribute or pass out any primarily commercial handbill or advertising 
material within or about any park without a written authorization from the General Manager, provided 
however, that this section does not apply to any concession operated under authority granted by the 
Board. 
 
6011.60 Eviction:   
 

6011.61 Person Subject to Eviction: A Person is subject to eviction from a park when all of the 
 following conditions occur:   
 

• The Person is in violation of a park rule or regulation. 
• The Person has been warned in a manner that is reasonably calculated to reach said 

Person that eviction may result from any further violation. 
• After receiving such warning, a further violation occurs. 
• Imposition of a lesser sanction will not reasonably suffice to cure the existing or ongoing 

violation of this policy. 
• Where a violation of this policy is of such magnitude or seriousness as to pose an 

immediate threat of violence or other disruption of the public health, safety or welfare, no 
warning will be necessary prior to eviction. 

 
6011.62 Person or Group Subject to Eviction: A Person or Group is subject to eviction from a 
park when any one of the following conditions occur and no lesser sanction reasonably appears 
to suffice: 

• There is probable cause to believe that an u nlawful assembly exists pursuant to 
California Penal Code Section 407, as determined by an officer of the law. 

• There is a clear and present danger of imminent violence which cannot reasonably be 
forestalled without eviction. 

• There exists a Group sponsored or organized activity which violates one or more park 
rules and regulations and such Group sponsored organized activity has not ceased as a 
result of one or more warnings given to the group as a whole. 

• There are multiple individual violations of park rules and regulations which have not 
stopped following the eviction of one or more such individual violators and violations 
continue after the Group has had a reasonable opportunity to cure them. 

 
 

6011.78 Unauthorized Motor Vehicles: No Person shall operate an unauthorized motor vehicle, four-wheel 
drive vehicle, motorcycle, motorbike, motor dirt bike, all-terrain vehicle, off highway vehicle or any 
other motorized vehicle within District property except as authorized by the General Manager. 

 
6011.78 Skateboards:   No Person shall ride a skateboard propelled by human power to roll or coast 
within District property. 
 
6011.79 Alcoholic Beverages:  No Person shall, within the limits of District property, possess or consume 
any alcoholic beverage.  
 
6011.80 Firearms, Weapons, Fireworks, Replica Firearms: No Person shall have any fireworks, firearms, 
replica firearms, air gun, paint ball gun, BB gun, slingshot or bow or hunting arrow or any weapon in 

Page 222 of 254



3 
 

his/her possession on District property, nor shall any person discharge any firearm, fireworks or weapon 
or display any replica firearm on District property.  
 
6011.81 Controlling Domestic Animals:   

 
Leash Required. No Person shall allow a dog or other domestic animal in any park unless the 
animal is restrained at all times by a substantial leash not to exceed six (6) feet in length and in 
the control of a person competent to restrain the animal, or unless the animal is restrained and 
enclosed in a cage, crate or similar enclosure. 
 
Animal Wastes. All Persons shall remove and properly dispose of animal excreta from any park. 
 
Dog Shows. Nothing in this section shall prevent the District from holding supervised public 
events on District property in which domestic animals participate, nor shall it prohibit the General 
Manager from issuing permits for group activities wherein dogs will be under the responsible care 
of a person while not restrained by a l eash or enclosed in a cage or similar enclosure while 
participating in a permitted canine event. 

 
Approvals for events in which animals other than dogs and cats participate are subject to specific 
approvals and conditions as determined by the General Manager. 

 
6011.82 Golfing:  No Person shall use a golf club or similar device to strike, hit, or similarly propel a golf 
ball within the boundaries of any park. 
 
6011.83 Unsafe Activity:  No Person shall engage in any activity in any park which may endanger the 
health, safety or welfare of any other person in a park. 
 
6011.84 Disorderly Conduct and Noise:

6011.85 Rental Fees and Charges: See Policy No. 6015 Establishment of Fees and Charges for Use of 
District Property. 

 No Person shall fight or challenge another person to fight or 
maliciously and willfully disturb another person by loud and unreasonable noise or who uses offensive 
language that is inherently likely to provoke an immediate violent reaction within District property 

 
6011.86 Amplified Sound System, Music and Live Music-Permit Required: No Person or Group shall 
setup, use, operate or maintain an amplified sound system, music and live music within any park without 
first obtaining a User Permit which specifies such is permitted. The General Manager or staff are 
expressly given the authority to determine the maximum amplification permissible in areas designated 
consistent with other persons’ enjoyment of District property. 
 
6011.87 Fire Regulation:

Smoking. Smoking of any substance by any means, including cigarettes, cigars, pipes or other 
devices is not permitted on District property. The General Manager shall post smoking 
regulations at conspicuous locations.   

  

 
Barbecues. Use of barbeques at parks and mini parks is permitted in designated cemented 
areas clear of trees and buildings with prior General Manager authorization. Smokers are 
prohibited. Hot coals may not be disposed of in any parks. 

 
6011.88 Inflatable Devices: Devices which require inflation by mechanical means or compressed gas 
containers, commonly called “bouncers” or “jumpers” are not permitted on District property unless the 
Group has provided to the District a certificate of insurance for at least $1,000,000, naming the District as 
additional insured. “Bouncers” or “jumpers” which require the use of water are not permitted. Helium filled 
balloons are not permitted in the Rush Park Auditorium. 
 

Page 223 of 254



4 
 

6011.89 Electrical Outlets:  No person shall use any outdoor electrical outlets in District parks. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adopted:  Resolution 94-4, April 13, 1994 
Approved renumbering & format:  October 8, 2002 
Reaffirmed:  June 10, 2003 
Amended:  August 12, 2008 
Amended:  September 8, 2009 
Amended: October 13, 2009 

Page 224 of 254



 
 

ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

Policy No. 6012 
 

 
GROUP PICNICS, PUBLIC GATHERINGS AND SPECIAL EVENTS 

 
 
 
6012.00 Definitions: For the purpose of this policy, the following terms shall have the respective meanings set forth 
herein, unless the context in which they are used clearly indicates the contrary: 
 
 6012.01 Group Picnics: An outing or occasion that involves eating outdoors with others 
 
 6012.02 Public Gatherings: A crowd or collection of people gathered together obtaining information or services 
 

6012.03 Special Event: A short term land use activity that is distinct from the customary land use of the 
property on which it is conducted and that involves the potential for a substantial number of participants or 
spectators. Special Event includes the potential for a substantial number of participants or spectators. Special 
Event includes carnival, community festival, outdoor dining or other event as determined by the General 
Manager. 

 
6012.10 Group Picnics or Public Gatherings-User Permit Required:  No Person shall cause any picnic, meeting or 
other public gathering involving the attendance of more than fifty (75) individuals to be held in any park without first 
obtaining a User Permit from the District. User Permits will be issued when previously issued permits have not 
exhausted the capacity of the park sought to be used. 
 
6012.20 Group Picnics or Public Gatherings-District Certificate of Insurance Required: Picnics or public gatherings 
numbering 150 attendees or more must reserve picnic area(s) or field space and also secure a User Permit from the 
District on a first come, first served basis. Such groups must also obtain a Certificate of Insurance for at least 
$1,000,000 naming the District as an additional insured in accordance with Policy No. 6010.50 District Indemnification. 

 
6012.30 Reserving Park Spaces-Rossmoor Residents and Community Youth Groups: Rossmoor residents  or 
community youth groups desiring to reserve a designated space in a park for a picnic or public gathering may do so by 
obtaining a User Permit, paying the fees called out in the District’s Fee Schedule and signing the District’s 
indemnification form. Groups of 150 or more persons must also meet the insurance requirements indicated above and 
apply for a Special Event permit. Reservations may be made no more than six (6) months in advance. 

 
6012.40 Denial of a User Permit: The General Manager may decline to issue a permit when he/she determines that 
the Person or Group applying, has within the preceding twelve (12) months conducted previous similar events in parks 
operated by the District and such events have resulted in noise or other activities which disturbed other users of the 
parks or residents adjacent to the park, or where the applicant has, or members of his/her Group have, been evicted 
from a park, or where there was substantial damage to the park.  If the General Manager declines to issue a permit 
he/she shall so notify the applicant in writing and set forth the reasons why a permit was not issued. 

 
6012.41 Appeal to the Board: An applicant or other interested Person who disputes the decision of the 
General Manager regarding a User Permit Application may appeal that decision to the Board by filing a written 
request to the General Manager for the matter to be placed on the agenda for the next scheduled Board 
meeting, and paying fees established in fee schedule. 

 
6012.50 Designated Areas: Groups are confined to the area(s) designated in the permit. Approval of an application for a 
baseball or softball diamond, for example, includes the space for the necessary outfield and does not include space 
between diamond outfields.    
 

Page 225 of 254

ldeering
Text Box
Attachment 3



6012.60 Special Event-User Permit Required: No personal shall cause a Special Event to occur on District property 
without first obtaining a User Permit for a Special Event.  
 
6012.70 Special Event Limitations: User Permits for Special Events may be subject to conditions to ensure that the 
permitted event does not interfere with other park uses or activities and is conducted in a safe and orderly manner. 
Such conditions shall be limited to the following requirements: 
 

6012.71 Special Event Application: Submit application at least 30 days prior to the date of the proposed 
Special Event including a detailed description of the proposed special event including the following; 

 
a. Name of organizer and contact information 
b. Detailed description of the event 
c. Diagram of venue area and floor plan 
d. Hours of the event 
e. Layout of the event 
f. Anticipated number of workers, volunteers, attendees 
g. Security measures (if applicable) 

 
6012.72 Pay fees for the use of “Event Attendant(s)” and facility/park use as established in the fee schedule; 

 
 6012.73 Pay filing fee as established in the fee schedule 
 

6012.74 Pay cleaning/security deposit and fees determined by District staff 
 
6012.75 Provide portable sanitary toilets/facilities in sufficient numbers to accommodate the expected number 
of attendees; 

 
6012.76 Provide dumpster rental and clean-up of litter and debris after the event; 

 
6012.77 Provide for control of the noise level of any sound amplification systems used so that applicable 
sound limits are not exceeded 

 
6012.80 Special Event Regulations: Each Special Event agrees to adhere to the following regulations: 
 

a. Special Event shall be conducted entirely within the time period and the boundaries approved by the 
District.   

 
b. Provide a certificate of insurance adding the District as additionally insured in the amount of 

$1,000,000 as defined in Policy No. 6012.20—Group Picnics or Public Gatherings-User Permit 
Required. 

 
c. Special Event organizer shall execute a written statement satisfactory to the General Manager 

whereby the organizer promises to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the District, District staff, 
District Board with respect to any liability for personal injury or property damage sustained by any 
person as a result of the Special Event.  

 
6012.90 Special Event Permit Revocation: The General Manager may revoke a Special Event permit if the Special 
Event is conducted contrary to the conditions of approval, or if, the event violates any District policy or law. In the event 
of such a cancellation, notice shall be given to the event organizer as far in advance of the scheduled event as 
possible. 
 
  
Adopted:  
 

Page 226 of 254



 1  

Rossmoor Community Services District 
 

Policy  No. 6012 
 

JOINT USE OF FACILITIES FOR DISTRICT SPONSORED 
PROGRAMS 

 
 
6012.00 Joint Use Of Facilities:  It is the District’s objective to provide recreational, cultural and 
sports programs. The Board may enter into partnerships, or other joint use arrangements, with 
individuals or organizations to jointly provide such programs in furtherance of this objective.   
 
6012.10 District Contribution To Jointly Sponsored Program Activities:  The District’s share of the 
cost of a partnership or joint use agreement may be covered partially or in full by providing the 
necessary facilities.  At the Board’s discretion, the established cost (see Policy No. 6015 
Establishment of Fees and Charges for use of District Parks, Buildings and Facilities) for the use of 
District facilities to the program’s partner may be waived or reduced depending on the benefit of the 
program to the District. 
 
6012.11 Joint Use Agreements:  Partnerships or joint use arrangements approved by the Board 
shall be formalized into a written agreement which covers the terms and conditions of the 
partnership or joint use, as well as the responsibilities of the respective parties. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adopted: June 14, 2005 
Amended: August 12, 2008  

Page 227 of 254

ldeering
Text Box
Attachment 4

ldeering
Text Box
CURRENT



 1  

Rossmoor Community Services District 
 

Policy  No. 6013 
 

JOINT USE OF DISTRICT PROPERTY FOR DISTRICT 
SPONSORED PROGRAMS 

 
 
6013.00 Joint Use Of District:  It is the District’s objective to provide recreational, cultural and 
sports programs. The Board may enter into partnerships, or other joint use arrangements, with 
individuals or organizations to jointly provide such programs in furtherance of this objective.   
 
6013.10  District Contribution To Jointly Sponsored Program Activities:  The District’s share of the 
cost of a partnership or joint use agreement may be covered partially or in full by providing the 
necessary facilities.  At the Board’s discretion, the established cost (see Policy No. 6015 
Establishment of Fees and Charges for use of District Parks, Buildings and Facilities) for the use of 
District facilities to the program’s partner may be waived or reduced depending on the benefit of the 
program to the District. 
 
6013.11 Joint Use Agreements:  Partnerships or joint use arrangements approved by the Board 
shall be formalized into a written agreement which covers the terms and conditions of the 
partnership or joint use, as well as the responsibilities of the respective parties. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adopted: June 14, 2005 
Amended: August 12, 2008  

Page 228 of 254

ldeering
Text Box
PROPOSED



 
 

   1 

Rossmoor Community Services District 
 

Policy No. 6015 
 

ESTABLISHMENT OF FEES AND CHARGES FOR USE OF DISTRICT 
PARKS, BUILDINGS AND FACILITIES 

 
6015.00 Facility Use:  A primary purpose of the District is to operate buildings and recreational 
facilities for the benefit of residents.  
 
6015.10 Facility Fees And Charges:  The Board shall review the schedule of facility fees and charges 
annually, prior to adoption of the District’s Final Budget, and make changes when appropriate in order to 
reflect the District’s actual direct and indirect costs. Fees and Charges include, but are not limited to user 
fees, security deposits, event attendant fees, key and alarm deposits and cleaning deposits.  The General 
Manager shall maintain a current schedule of fees and charges and make copies available upon request. 
Fees and charges which are adjusted by the Board during the period of use shall be charged or refunded 
to the applicant on a prorated basis.   
 

6015.11 Deposits Required:  All deposits required in the Schedule of Fees and Charges shall apply 
to short-term users, as well as long-term and dedicated users, i.e. key deposits, cleaning deposits, 
etc unless exempted within the Schedule of Fees and Charges. All deposits shall be kept current 
during the period of use; i.e., cleaning deposits used by the District for remedial action shall be 
resubmitted by the renter to constitute a current full deposit. 
 

 6015.12 Clean-up Following Use:  Clean up of indoor and outdoor park facilities and replacing tables 
and/or chairs is the responsibility of the user. Users are required to clean up park and facility used, 
wipe counters and equipment, clean up any spillage, bag all trash and remove all supplies not 
provided by the District. Users shall report any malfunctioning equipment to the District Office for 
repair/replacement.  If cleanup is not accomplished at an acceptable standard and the use of 
District employees is required to meet an acceptable standard, an appropriate amount will be 
withheld from the deposit at the discretion of the General Manager to cover the additional labor 
and material costs. 

 
6015.13 Event Attendant Fees:  The District may determine, in its sole discretion, to require that 
an Event Attendant be assigned to oversee the event or other use of the facility.  Said Event 
Attendant will be an employee or other agent of the District and will oversee and otherwise 
monitor the activities and use of the applicable facility to determine whether the user is properly 
using the facility.  For example, and not by way of limitation, the Event Attendant may monitor: (a) 
activities, use and treatment of the facility; (b) opening/unlocking and closing/locking of the 
facility; and (c) setting/turning off an alarm system.  In the event the District requires an Event 
Attendant, the applicable Event Attendant Fees shall be imposed pursuant to the applicable 
District policy.    
 
6015.14 Event Deposit:  The District may determine, in its sole discretion, to require the payment 
of an Event Deposit in the amount set forth in the applicable District policy.  The Event Deposit 
shall be applied toward any costs and expenses incurred by the District in responding to 
issues/questions which arise from the activity or event and/or otherwise taking action to bring the 
event, use or activity into compliance with the applicable District policy.  For example, and not by 
way of limitation, the District may incur expenses in connection with assisting, and/or performing, 
activities related to (a) use and treatment of the facility; (b) opening/unlocking and closing/locking 
of the facility; and (c) setting/turning off an alarm system. 
 

Page 229 of 254

ldeering
Text Box
Attachment 5

ldeering
Text Box
CURRENT



 
 

   2 

6015.15 Option of Event Attendant Or Event Deposit:  The District may determine, in its sole 
discretion, to permit the user to elect to pay Event Attendant Fees for an Event Attendant or to 
pay the Event Deposit.  The District retains the authority to determine, in its sole discretion, to 
require the user to pay the Event Attendant Fees or the Event Deposit.  A user will not be 
charged both Event Attendant Fees and an Event Deposit for the same event/use. 

 
6015.16 Return of Deposits:  At the termination of the User Permit period, all applicable deposits will 
be returned to the renters within a reasonable time period for processing payment and to determine if 
all deposit conditions have been met. The General Manager shall have the discretion to determine if 
all or only part of a deposit shall be returned based on his/her assessment of the condition of the 
building or facility at the end of the fixed period of time. See Policy No. 6010 Requests for Use of 
District Parks, Buildings and Facilities, for other conditions. 
 
6015.17 Hourly Rates: Hourly rates posted in the Schedule of Fees and Charges are for full hour 
usage. Any usage for less than an hour, or any usage that exceeds an hour, shall be rounded up to, 
and charged for, the full hour.  Hourly fees apply to each hour of usage including set up and tear 
down time. Fees for tennis court reservations which are designated as one and one half hours are 
per reservation and cannot be rolled up. 
 
6015.18 Per Diem Rates:  Per diem rates are posted in the Schedule of Fees and Charges and are 
for full day usage such as reserving of a picnic area for the day. 
 
6015.19 Appeal to the Board: A user who disputes the decision of the General Manager regarding 
the refund of deposits or calculation of fees may appeal that decision to the Board by filing a written 
request to the General Manager for the matter to be placed on the Agenda for the next scheduled 
Board meeting. 
 

6015. 20 Fee Schedule The schedule of fees and charges is attached and is a part of this policy. 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adopted:  Resolution 99-12-8-1, December 8, 1999 
Adopted:  Resolution 00-12-14-01, December 14, 2000 
Adopted:  Policy 6015, June 10, 2003 
Amended: November 8, 2005 
Amended: August 12, 2008 
Amended: October 13, 2009 
Amended: September 14, 2010 

Page 230 of 254



 
 

   1 

 
 
 

ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

Policy  No. 6015 

 
ESTABLISHMENT OF FEES AND CHARGES FOR USE OF DISTRICT 

PROPERTYPARKS, BUILDINGS AND FACILITIES 
 
 
6015.00 Facility Use:  A primary purpose of the District is to operate buildings and recreational 
facilities for the benefit of residents.  
 
6015.10 Facility Fees And Charges:  The Board shall review the schedule of facility fees and charges 
annually, prior to adoption of the District’s Final Budget, and make changes when appropriate in order to 
reflect the District’s actual direct and indirect costs. Fees and Charges include, but are not limited to user 
fees, security deposits, event attendant fees, key and alarm deposits and cleaning deposits.  The General 
Manager shall maintain a current schedule of fees and charges and make copies available upon request. 
Fees and charges which are adjusted by the Board during the period of use shall be charged or refunded 
to the applicant on a prorated basis.   
 

6015.11 Deposits Required:  All deposits required in the Schedule of Fees and Charges shall apply 
to short-term users, as well as long-term and dedicated users, i.e. key deposits, cleaning deposits, 
etc unless exempted within the Schedule of Fees and Charges. All deposits shall be kept current 
during the period of use; i.e., cleaning deposits used by the District for remedial action shall be 
resubmitted by the renter to constitute a current full deposit. 
 

 6015.12 Clean-up Following Use:  Clean up of indoor and outdoor park facilities and replacing tables 
and/or chairs is the responsibility of the user. Users are required to clean up park and facility used, 
wipe counters and equipment, clean up any spillage, bag all trash and remove all supplies not 
provided by the District. Users shall report any malfunctioning equipment to the District Office for 
repair/replacement.  If cleanup is not accomplished at an acceptable standard and the use of 
District employees is required to meet an acceptable standard, an appropriate amount shallwill be 
withheld from the deposit at the discretion of the General Manager to cover the additional labor 
and material costs. 

 
 6015.13 Event Attendant Fees:  The District may determine, in its sole discretion, to require that 

an Event Attendant be assigned to oversee the event or other use of District property.the facility.  
Said eventEvent Attendant shallwill be an employee or other agent of the District and shallwill 
oversee and otherwise monitor the activities and use of the applicable facility to determine 
whether the user is properly using the facility.  For example, and not by way of limitation, the 
Event Attendant shallmay monitor: (a) activities, use and treatment of District propertythe facility; 
(b) opening/unlocking and closing/locking of the facility; and (c) setting/turning off an alarm 
system.  In the event the District requires and eventan Event Attendant, the applicable Event 
Attendant FessFees shall be imposed pursuant to the applicable District policy. Cancellation of 
event less than five (5) business days prior to the event shall result in loss of Event Attendant 
Fees from deposit.   

 

Style Definition: Body Text

Style Definition: Subtitle: Font: (Default)
+Headings, 12 pt, Italic, Expanded by  0.65 pt,
Indent: Left:  0", Space After:  30 pt, Line
spacing:  Multiple 1.15 li, Tab stops: Not at 
4.38"

Style Definition: Title: Font: (Default)
+Headings, 26 pt, No underline, Expanded by 
0.25 pt, Left, Space After:  10 pt, Don't add
space between paragraphs of the same style,
Border: Bottom: (Single solid line, Auto,  0.5 pt
Line width), Tab stops: Not at  4.38"

Formatted: Font: Arial, 14 pt, Not Italic

Formatted: Left

Formatted: Font: Arial, 14 pt

Formatted: Font: Arial, 14 pt, Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Arial, 14 pt

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0",
Hanging:  0.5", Don't hyphenate, Tab stops: 
0.63", Left

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Underline

Page 231 of 254

ldeering
Text Box
REDLINE



 
 

   2 

 6015.14 Event Deposit:  The District may determine, in its sole discretion, to require the payment 
of an Event Deposit in the amount set forth in the applicable District policy.  The Event Deposit 
shall be applied toward any costs and expenses incurred by the District in responding to 
issueissues/questions which arise from the activity or event and/or otherwise taking action to 
bring the event, use or activity into compliance with the applicable District policy.  For example, 
and not by way of limitation, the District may incur expenses in connection with assisting, and/or 
performing, activities related to (a) use and treatment of District propertythe facility; (b) 
opening/unlocking and closing/locking of the facility; and (c) setting/turning off an alarm system. If 
Event Attendant is not required, events with more than 100 attendees shall be required to pay the 
event deposit. 

 
6015.15 Option of Event Attendant Or Event Deposit:   The District may determine, in its sole 
discretion, to permit the user to elect to pay Event Attendant Fees for an Event Attendant or to pay 
the Event Deposit.  The District retains the authority to determine, in its sole discretion, to require the 
user to pay the Event Attendant Fees or the Event Deposit.  A user will not be charged both Event 
Attendant Fees and an Event Deposit for the same event/use. 

 
6015.16 Return of Deposits:  At the termination of the User Permit period, all applicable deposits 
shallwill be returned to the renters within a reasonable time period for processing payment and to 
determine if all deposit conditions have been met. The General Manager shall have the discretion to 
determine if all or only part of a deposit shall be returned based on his/her assessment of the 
condition of the building or facility at the end of the fixed period of time. See Policy No. 6010 
Requests for Use of District PropertyParks, Buildings and Facilities, for other conditions. 
 
6015.17 Hourly Rates: Hourly rates posted in the Schedule of Fees and Charges are for full hour 
usage. Any usage for less than an hour, or any usage that exceeds an hour, shall be rounded up to, 
and charged for, the full hour.  Hourly fees apply to each hour of usage including set up and tear 
down time. Fees for tennis court reservations which are designated as one and one half hours are 
per reservation and cannot be rolled up. 
per reservation and cannot be rolled up. 
 
6015.18 Per Diem Rates:  Per diem rates are posted in the Schedule of Fees and Charges and are 
for full day usage such as reserving of a picnic area for the day. 
 
6015.19 Appeal to the Board: A user who disputes the decision of the General Manager regarding 
the refund of deposits or calculation of fees may appeal that decision to the Board by filing a written 
request to the General Manager for the matter to be placed on the agendaAgenda for the next 
scheduled Board meeting. 
 
6015. 20 Fee Schedule: The current fee schedule of fees and charges is attached to and madeis a 
part of this policy. 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
Adopted:  Resolution 99-12-8-1, December 8, 1999 
Adopted:  Resolution 00-12-14-01, December 14, 2000 
Adopted:  Policy 6015, June 10, 2003 
Amended: November 8, 2005 
Amended: August 12, 2008 
Amended: October 13, 2009 
Amended: September 14, 2010 

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Condensed by  0.15 pt

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0", Don't
hyphenate

Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Condensed by 
0.15 pt

Formatted: Condensed by  0.15 pt

Formatted: Condensed by  0.15 pt

Formatted: Condensed by  0.15 pt

Formatted: Condensed by  0.15 pt

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: No underline

Formatted: Condensed by  0.15 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Don't
hyphenate

Formatted: Condensed by  0.15 pt

Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Condensed by 
0.15 pt

Formatted: Condensed by  0.15 pt

Formatted: Condensed by  0.15 pt

Formatted: Condensed by  0.15 pt

Formatted: Condensed by  0.15 pt

Formatted: Condensed by  0.15 pt

Formatted: Condensed by  0.15 pt

Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Condensed by 
0.15 pt

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New
Roman, 12 pt

Page 232 of 254



 
 

1 
 

 
 
 

ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

Policy  No. 6015 

ESTABLISHMENT OF FEES AND CHARGES FOR USE OF DISTRICT 
PROPERTY 

 
 
6015.00 Facility Use:  A primary purpose of the District is to operate buildings and recreational 
facilities for the benefit of residents.  
 
6015.10 Facility Fees And Charges:  The Board shall review the schedule of facility fees and charges 
annually, prior to adoption of the District’s Final Budget, and make changes when appropriate in order to 
reflect the District’s actual direct and indirect costs. Fees and Charges include, but are not limited to user 
fees, security deposits, event attendant fees, key and alarm deposits and cleaning deposits.  The General 
Manager shall maintain a current schedule of fees and charges and make copies available upon request. 
Fees and charges which are adjusted by the Board during the period of use shall be charged or refunded 
to the applicant on a prorated basis.   
 

6015.11 Deposits Required:  All deposits required in the Schedule of Fees and Charges shall apply 
to short-term users, as well as long-term and dedicated users, i.e. key deposits, cleaning deposits, 
etc unless exempted within the Schedule of Fees and Charges. All deposits shall be kept current 
during the period of use; i.e., cleaning deposits used by the District for remedial action shall be 
resubmitted by the renter to constitute a current full deposit. 
 

 6015.12 Clean-up Following Use:  Clean up of indoor and outdoor park facilities and replacing tables 
and/or chairs is the responsibility of the user. Users are required to clean up park and facility used, 
wipe counters and equipment, clean up any spillage, bag all trash and remove all supplies not 
provided by the District. Users shall report any malfunctioning equipment to the District Office for 
repair/replacement.  If cleanup is not accomplished at an acceptable standard and the use of 
District employees is required to meet an acceptable standard, an appropriate amount shall be 
withheld from the deposit at the discretion of the General Manager to cover the additional labor 
and material costs. 

 
 6015.13 Event Attendant Fees:  The District may determine, in its sole discretion, to require that 

an Event Attendant be assigned to oversee the event or other use of District property. Said event 
Attendant shall be an employee or other agent of the District and shall oversee and otherwise 
monitor the activities and use of the applicable facility to determine whether the user is properly 
using the facility. For example, and not by way of limitation, the Event Attendant shall monitor: (a) 
activities, use and treatment of District property; (b) opening/unlocking and closing/locking of the 
facility; and (c) setting/turning off an alarm system. In the event the District requires and event 
Attendant, the applicable Event Attendant Fess shall be imposed pursuant to the applicable 
District policy. Cancellation of event less than five (5) business days prior to the event shall result 
in loss of Event Attendant Fees from deposit. 

 
 6015.14 Event Deposit: The District may determine, in its sole discretion, to require the payment 

of an Event Deposit in the amount set forth in the applicable District policy. The Event Deposit 

Page 233 of 254

ldeering
Text Box
PROPOSED



 
 

2 
 

shall be applied toward any costs and expenses incurred by the District in responding to 
issue/questions which arise from the activity or event and/or otherwise taking action to bring the 
event, use or activity into compliance with the applicable District policy. For example, and not by 
way of limitation, the District may incur expenses in connection with assisting, and/or performing, 
activities related to (a) use and treatment of District property; (b) opening/unlocking and 
closing/locking of the facility; and (c) setting/turning off an alarm system. If Event Attendant is not 
required, events with more than 100 attendees shall be required to pay the event deposit. 

 
6015.15 Option of Event Attendant Or Event Deposit:   The District may determine, in its sole 
discretion, to permit the user to elect to pay Event Attendant Fees for an Event Attendant or to pay 
the Event Deposit. The District retains the authority to determine, in its sole discretion, to require the 
user to pay the Event Attendant Fees or the Event Deposit. A user will not be charged both Event 
Attendant Fees and an Event Deposit for the same event/use. 

 
6015.16 Return of Deposits:  At the termination of the User Permit period, all applicable deposits 
shall be returned to the renters within a reasonable time period for processing payment and to 
determine if all deposit conditions have been met. The General Manager shall have the discretion to 
determine if all or only part of a deposit shall be returned based on his/her assessment of the 
condition of the building or facility at the end of the fixed period of time. See Policy No. 6010 
Requests for Use of District Property, for other conditions. 
 
6015.17 Hourly Rates: Hourly rates posted in the Schedule of Fees and Charges are for full hour 
usage. Any usage for less than an hour, or any usage that exceeds an hour, shall be rounded up to, 
and charged for, the full hour.  Hourly fees apply to each hour of usage including set up and tear 
down time. Fees for tennis court reservations which are designated as one and one half hours are 
per reservation and cannot be rolled up. 
 
6015.18 Per Diem Rates: Per diem rates are posted in the Schedule of Fees and Charges and are 
for full day usage such as reserving of a picnic area for the day. 
 
6015.19 Appeal to the Board: A user who disputes the decision of the General Manager regarding 
the refund of deposits or calculation of fees may appeal that decision to the Board by filing a written 
request to the General Manager for the matter to be placed on the agenda for the next scheduled 
Board meeting. 
 
6015.20 Fee Schedule: The current fee schedule is attached to and made a part of this policy. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Adopted:  Resolution 99-12-8-1, December 8, 1999 
Adopted:  Resolution 00-12-14-01, December 14, 2000 
Adopted:  Policy 6015, June 10, 2003 
Amended: November 8, 2005 
Amended: August 12, 2008 
Amended: 
 

Page 234 of 254



1 

Rossmoor Community Services District 
 
Policy No. 6050 
 

FACILITIES – TENNIS COURTS 
 
 
6050.10 Appropriate Etiquette:  All persons playing on or visiting the Rossmoor tennis courts shall use 
commonly accepted tennis etiquette.  All attempts shall be made not to disturb other players.  The 
Rossmoor courts are primarily intended for the playing of games by two or more persons.  A reservation 
does not take effect until two or more persons are present and ready to play. 
 
6050.20 Use Limitation For Non-Reservation Players:  Court use is limited to one hour for non-reservation 
players when there are people waiting.  This does not mean that someone has to wait one hour, only that the 
party occupying the court has to surrender the court after one hour of use whenever anyone else appears  
and wishes to use the court to play or immediately if someone appears with a reservation in hand or posted 
on the Court Tennis Schedule at the east entrance to the tennis courts. 
 
6050.30 Use Limitation For Players With Reservation:  Court use for persons making a reservation is 
limited to a maximum of one and one-half hours (per day on Saturdays, Sundays, holidays and after 3:00 
p.m. on weekdays).   
 
6050.40 Expiration of Reserved Time:  Courts shall be surrendered to the next waiting party when their 
playing time has expired. When a game is in progress at the time of expiration, play may continue up to a 
maximum of five (5) minutes to complete the game in progress.  No new game, other than the concluding 
game of a set, should commence with less than five (5) minutes remaining on the allowable playing time. 
   
6050.50 Advance Reservation:  All reservations must be made no later than 4:00 p.m. PST. for use that 
evening or 4:00 p.m. on Friday for use that evening or the weekend through Monday at 4:00 p.m. Times 
during PDT shall be 3:00 p.m. The posting of the Court Tennis Schedule shall be done in a manner so as 
give proper notice of courts and times reserved.  The charge for reservations shall be established by Policy 
No. 6015 Establishment of Fees and Charges for use of District Parks, Buildings and Facilities. 
 
 6050.51   Reservation Limit:  No reservations may be made for more than two weeks in advance 
                 by residents and one week in advance by non-residents. 
 
 6050.52  Method of Payment:  Payment for the use of reserved play time may be made at the 
 District office during normal business hours or by placing the fee in an envelope provided at the 
 District’s Recreation office, and placing the envelope in the slot on the north wall of the Rossmoor 
 Park Community Center building.  
  
 6050.53   Rain Check:  A “rain check” or refund may be given, upon request, for a reservation that 
 is not usable due to inclement weather, acts of God or other reasons deemed sufficient by the 
 General Manager.  A refund will be given for a reservation that is cancelled no less than twenty-
 four hours prior to the reserved time. . 
 
6050.60 Use By A Single Player:  A single player may occupy a court for practice so long as it is available 
and there are no groups of two or more waiting.  The court shall be vacated by the single player upon 
determination that there is a group of two or more waiting to play. 
 
6050.70 Challenge Match:  A challenge match, that may consist of up to six persons playing doubles, shall 
occupy a court for no more than two hours when there are persons waiting to play. 
 

Page 235 of 254

ldeering
Text Box
Attachment 6

ldeering
Text Box
CURRENT



2 

6050.80 Appropriate Footwear Required:  All players shall use footwear which is appropriate for the hard 
court surface found at the Rossmoor courts.  Such footwear shall not mark, chip, or otherwise damage the 
surface of the courts. 
 
6050.90 Court Maintenance:  The tennis courts will be closed for washing or maintenance each 
Wednesday morning from 7:00 a.m. to 10:00 a.m..  This provision is in effect even if there is no one actually 
washing or performing maintenance during this time. 
 
6050.100 Court Reserved For Instruction:  Courts may be reserved at various times for use in both private 
and group classes sponsored by the District. Reserved times will be posted on the reservations board 
adjacent to the courts. 
 
6050.110 Prohibited Uses on Courts: Tennis courts are for tennis play only. The courts may not be used for 
other sports, rollerblading or skating, skate boarding, bicycling or any other wheeled device. Courts may not 
be used for picnicking, barbequing, or any other group activity. Dogs, whether leased or unleashed are not 
permitted within the tennis court complex. Failure to comply with these restrictions will subject the person or 
persons to eviction from the courts and the park facility in accordance with Policy No. 6010.60. 
 
6050.120 Tennis Instruction: Tennis instruction by any  individual shall not be offered for compensation 
without a permit approved by the General Manager pursuant to a written agreement approved by the Board. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adopted:  July 14, 1993 
Amended:   August 6, 1997 
Approved renumbering & format:  October 8, 2002 
Reaffirmed:  December 10, 2002 
Amended:  April 13, 2004 
Amended:  March 11, 2008 

Page 236 of 254



1 

ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 
Policy No. 6050 
 

FACILITIES – TENNIS COURTS 
 
 
6050.10 Appropriate Etiquette:  All persons playing on or visiting the Rossmoor tennis courts shall use 
commonly accepted tennis etiquette.  All attempts shall be made not to disturb other players.  The 
Rossmoor courts are primarily intended for the playing of games by two or more persons.  A reservation 
does not take effect until two or more persons are present and ready to play. 
 
6050.20 Use Limitation For Non-Reservation Players:  Court use is limited to one hour for non-reservation 
players when there are people waiting.  This does not mean that someone has to wait one hour, only that the 
party occupying the court has to surrender the court after one hour of use whenever anyone else appears  
and wishes to use the court to play or immediately if someone appears with a reservation in hand or posted 
on the Court Tennis Schedule at the east entrance to the tennis courts. 
 
6050.30 Use Limitation For Players With Reservation:  Court use for persons making a reservation is 
limited to a maximum of twoone and one-half hours (per day on Saturdays, Sundays, holidays and after 3:00 
p.m. on weekdays.).   
 
6050.40 Expiration of Reserved Time:  Courts shall be surrendered to the next waiting party when their 
playing time has expired. When a game is in progress at the time of expiration, play may continue up to a 
maximum of five (5) minutes to complete the game in progress.  No new game, other than the concluding 
game of a set, should commence with less than five (5) minutes remaining on the allowable playing time. 
   
6050.50 Advance Reservation:  All reservations must be made no later than 14:00 p.m. PST. for use that 
dayevening or 14:00 p.m. on Friday for use that evening or the weekend through Monday at 14:00 p.m. 
Times during PDT shall be 3:00 p.m. The posting of the Court Tennis Schedule shall be done in a manner so 
as give proper notice of courts and times reserved.  The charge for reservations shall be established by 
Policy No. 6015 Establishment of Fees and Charges for use of District Parks, Buildings and Facilities. 
 
 6050.51   Reservation Limit:  No reservations may be made for more than two weeks in advance 
                 by residents and one week in advance by non-residents. 
 
 6050.52  Method of Payment:  Payment for the use of reserved play time may be made at the 
 District office during normal business hours or by placing the fee in an envelope provided at the 
 District’s Recreation office, and placing the envelope in the slot on the north wall of the Rossmoor 
 Park Community Center building.  
  
 6050.53   Rain Check:  A “rain check” or refund may be given, upon request, for a reservation that 
 is not usable due to inclement weather, acts of God or other reasons deemed sufficient by the 
 General Manager.  A refund shallwill be given for a reservation that is cancelled no less than 
twenty- four hours prior to the reserved time. . 
 
6050.60 Use By A Single Player:  A single player may occupy a court for practice so long as it is available 
and there are no groups of two or more waiting.  The court shall be vacated by the single player upon 
determination that there is a group of two or more waiting to play. 
 
6050.70 Challenge Match:  A challenge match, that may consist of up to six persons playing doubles, shall 
occupy a court for no more than two hours when there are persons waiting to play. 
 

Page 237 of 254

ldeering
Text Box
REDLINE



2 

6050.80 Appropriate Footwear Required:  All players shall use footwear which is appropriate for the hard 
court surface found at the Rossmoor courts.  Such footwear shall not mark, chip, or otherwise damage the 
surface of the courts. 
 
6050.90 Court Maintenance:  The tennis courts will be closed for washing or maintenance each 
Wednesday morning from 7:00 a.m. to 10:00 a.m..  This provision is in effect even if there is no one actually 
washing or performing maintenance during this time. 
 
6050.100 Court Reserved For Instruction:  Courts may be reserved at various times for use in both private 
and group classes sponsored by the District. Reserved times will be posted on the reservations board 
adjacent to the courts. 
 
6050.110 Prohibited Uses on Courts: Tennis courts are for tennis play only. The courts may not be used for 
other sports, rollerblading or skating, skate boarding, bicycling or any other wheeled device. Courts may not 
be used for picnicking, barbequing, or any other group activity. Dogs, whether leased or unleashed are not 
permitted within the tennis court complex. Failure to comply with these restrictions will subject the person or 
persons to eviction from the courts and the park facility in accordance with Policy No. 60116010.60. 
 
6050.120 Tennis Instruction: Tennis instruction by any  individual shall not be offered for compensation 
without a permit approved by the General Manager pursuant to a written agreement approved by the Board. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adopted:  July 14, 1993 
Amended:   August 6, 1997 
Approved renumbering & format:  October 8, 2002 
Reaffirmed:  December 10, 2002 
Amended:  April 13, 2004 
Amended:  March 11, 2008 
 

Page 238 of 254



1 

ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 
Policy No. 6050 
 

FACILITIES – TENNIS COURTS 
 
 
6050.10 Appropriate Etiquette:  All persons playing on or visiting the Rossmoor tennis courts shall use 
commonly accepted tennis etiquette.  All attempts shall be made not to disturb other players.  The 
Rossmoor courts are primarily intended for the playing of games by two or more persons.   
 
6050.20 Use Limitation For Non-Reservation Players:  Court use is limited to one hour for non-reservation 
players when there are people waiting.  This does not mean that someone has to wait one hour, only that the 
party occupying the court has to surrender the court after one hour of use whenever anyone else appears  
and wishes to use the court to play or immediately if someone appears with a reservation in hand or posted 
on the Court Tennis Schedule at the east entrance to the tennis courts. 
 
6050.30 Use Limitation For Players With Reservation:  Court use for persons making a reservation is 
limited to a maximum of two hours on Saturdays, Sundays, holidays and after 3:00 p.m. on weekdays.  
 
6050.40 Expiration of Reserved Time:  Courts shall be surrendered to the next waiting party when their 
playing time has expired. When a game is in progress at the time of expiration, play may continue up to a 
maximum of five (5) minutes to complete the game in progress.  No new game, other than the concluding 
game of a set, should commence with less than five (5) minutes remaining on the allowable playing time. 
   
6050.50 Advance Reservation:  All reservations must be made no later than 1:00 p.m. PST. for use that day 
or 1:00 p.m. on Friday for use that evening or the weekend through Monday at 1:00 p.m.  The posting of the 
Court Tennis Schedule shall be done in a manner so as give proper notice of courts and times reserved.  The 
charge for reservations shall be established by Policy No. 6015 Establishment of Fees and Charges for use 
of District Parks, Buildings and Facilities. 
 
 6050.51   Reservation Limit:  No reservations may be made for more than two weeks in advance 
                 by residents and one week in advance by non-residents. 
 
 6050.52  Method of Payment:  Payment for the use of reserved play time may be made at the 
 District office during normal business hours or by placing the fee in an envelope provided at the 
 District’s Recreation office, and placing the envelope in the slot on the north wall of the Rossmoor 
 Park Community Center building.  
  
 6050.53   Rain Check:  A “rain check” or refund may be given, upon request, for a reservation that 
 is not usable due to inclement weather, acts of God or other reasons deemed sufficient by the 
 General Manager.  A refund shall be given for a reservation that is cancelled no less than twenty-
 four hours prior to the reserved time. . 
 
6050.60 Use By A Single Player:  A single player may occupy a court for practice so long as it is available 
and there are no groups of two or more waiting.  The court shall be vacated by the single player upon 
determination that there is a group of two or more waiting to play. 
 
6050.70 Challenge Match:  A challenge match, that may consist of up to six persons playing doubles, shall 
occupy a court for no more than two hours when there are persons waiting to play. 
 
6050.80 Appropriate Footwear Required:  All players shall use footwear which is appropriate for the hard 
court surface found at the Rossmoor courts.  Such footwear shall not mark, chip, or otherwise damage the 
surface of the courts. 

Page 239 of 254

ldeering
Text Box
PROPOSED



2 

6050.90 Court Maintenance:  The tennis courts will be closed for washing or maintenance each 
Wednesday morning from 7:00 a.m. to 10:00 a.m..  This provision is in effect even if there is no one actually 
washing or performing maintenance during this time. 
 
6050.100 Court Reserved For Instruction:  Courts may be reserved at various times for use in both private 
and group classes sponsored by the District. Reserved times will be posted on the reservations board 
adjacent to the courts. 
 
6050.110 Prohibited Uses on Courts: Tennis courts are for tennis play only. The courts may not be used for 
other sports, rollerblading or skating, skate boarding, bicycling or any other wheeled device. Courts may not 
be used for picnicking, barbequing, or any other group activity. Dogs, whether leased or unleashed are not 
permitted within the tennis court complex. Failure to comply with these restrictions will subject the person or 
persons to eviction from the courts and the park facility in accordance with Policy No. 6011.60. 
 
6050.120 Tennis Instruction: Tennis instruction by any individual shall not be offered for compensation 
without a permit approved by the General Manager pursuant to a written agreement approved by the Board. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adopted:  July 14, 1993 
Amended:   August 6, 1997 
Approved renumbering & format:  October 8, 2002 
Reaffirmed:  December 10, 2002 
Amended:  April 13, 2004 
Amended:  March 11, 2008 
 

Page 240 of 254



 
ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM H-7  
 
Date: July 10, 2012 
 
To: Honorable Board of Directors 
 
From: Consulting General Manager 
 
Subject: HIRING OF PUBLIC EMPLOYEE-GENERAL COUNSEL 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve Employment Agreement with the law firm of Jenkins & Hogin 
as General Counsel for the District. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
At your Special Board Meeting on June 7, 2012, the Board took an 
action to hire the law firm of Jenkins & Hogin, LLP as Special Counsel 
due to a conflict of interest with BB&K and the County of Orange. At 
your Special Board Meeting of June 21, 2012, the Board took an action 
to dismiss BB&K as District General Counsel and asked the General 
Manager to secure a proposed Employment Agreement with the law 
firm of Jenkins & Hogin, LLP. That Employment Agreement is attached 
for your review and approval.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
  
1. Employment Agreement-Jenkins & Hogin, LLP 
 
2. Jenkins & Hogin Profile. 
 

Page 241 of 254



Page 242 of 254



Page 243 of 254



Page 244 of 254



Page 245 of 254



Page 246 of 254



Page 247 of 254



Page 248 of 254



Page 249 of 254



Page 250 of 254



Page 251 of 254



Page 252 of 254



Page 253 of 254



Page 254 of 254


	RCSD AGENDA COVER PAGE 07.10.12
	AGENDA 071012 
	D-1 Report on Governance 061212 
	ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
	AGENDA ITEM D-1
	Subject: REPORT ON GOVERNANCE



	D-2 CIP Comm Recomendations 050812 
	ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
	AGENDA ITEM D-2
	Subject: COMMITTEE REPORT RE: REVIEW OF FY 2012-2013 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS AND RECOMMENDED PROJECT LISTS AND PROPOSED 2012-2013 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT BUDGETS



	4 Yr CIP_Fund 40
	E-1a. Minutes 071012 
	ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
	AGENDA ITEM E-1a.
	Subject: MINUTES:  REGULAR MEETING OF JUNE 12, 2012



	MINUTES 061212
	E-1b. Minutes 071012 
	ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
	AGENDA ITEM E-1b.
	Subject: MINUTES:  SPECIAL MEETING OF JUNE 7, 2012



	SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 060712
	E-1c. Minutes 071012 
	ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
	AGENDA ITEM E-1c.
	Subject: MINUTES:  SPECIAL MEETING OF JUNE 21, 2012



	SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 062112
	E-2  Rev& Exp Report 070121 
	ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
	AGENDA ITEM E-2


	May 2012 Rev & Exp Rpt
	Notice of Budget Hearing 
	G-1 Annual Appropriations Limit 071211
	ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
	AGENDA ITEM G-1
	Subject: RESOLUTION No. 12-07-10-01 APPROVING AND ADOPTING THE ANNUAL APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2012-2013



	12-07-10-01 Appropriations Limit FY 2012-13
	BOARD OF DIRECTORS

	G-2 Annual  Revenue & Expenditure Totals  071211  (1)
	ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
	AGENDA ITEM G-2
	Subject: RESOLUTION No. 12-07-10-02 ESTABLISHING THE ANNUAL BUDGET REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE TOTALS AMOUNT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2012-2013 FOR THE ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT.



	12-07-10-02 Annual Rev and Exp Totals  Resolution
	Attachment A Revenue & Expenditure Totals
	H-7 Attach_Jenkins and Hogin
	ADP28E3.tmp
	ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
	AGENDA ITEM F-1
	Subject: PUBLIC HEARING-FISCAL YEAR 2012-2013 PROPOSED FINAL BUDGET



	ADP28E8.tmp
	ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
	AGENDA ITEM H-1
	Subject: CSDA BOARD OF DIRECTORS ELECTION 2012



	ADP28EA.tmp
	ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
	AGENDA ITEM H-2
	Subject: EXTENDED TERM AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE TENNIS INSTRUCTION AT ROSSMOOR PARK-FERNANDO MOLINA



	ADP28ED.tmp
	ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
	AGENDA ITEM H-3
	Subject: AMENDMENT- STREET SWEEPING AGREEMENT-
	R. F. DICKSON CO. INC.



	ADP28F2.tmp
	ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
	AGENDA ITEM H-4
	Subject: HIRING OF TEMPORARY PART-TIME ASSISTANT RECREATION LEADER



	ADP28F4.tmp
	ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
	AGENDA ITEM H-5
	Subject: EXECUTE AGREEMENT WITH WEST COAST ELECTRIC FOR ELECTRICAL REPAIRS TO RUSH PARK AUDITORIUM



	ADP28F7.tmp
	ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
	AGENDA ITEM H-6


	ADP28F9.tmp
	ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
	AGENDA ITEM H-7
	Subject: HIRING OF PUBLIC EMPLOYEE-GENERAL COUNSEL



	ADP2931.tmp
	Policy No. 6010
	REQUESTS FOR USE OF DISTRICT  PARKS AND FACILITIES

	ADP2933.tmp
	Policy No. 6010
	REQUESTS FOR USE OF DISTRICT PROPERTY PARKS AND FACILITIES

	ADP2936.tmp
	Policy No. 6010
	REQUESTS FOR USE OF DISTRICT PROPERTY

	ADP2939.tmp
	Policy No. 6011
	RULES AND REGULATIONS FOR THE USE OF DISTRICT PROPERTY


	ADP293B.tmp
	Policy No. 6011
	RULES AND REGULATIONS FOR THE USE OF DISTRICT PROPERTY

	ADP293E.tmp
	Policy No. 6011
	RULES AND REGULATIONS FOR USE OF DISTRICT PROPERTY

	ADP2941.tmp
	Policy No. 6012
	GROUP PICNICS, PUBLIC GATHERINGS AND SPECIAL EVENTS

	ADP2944.tmp
	JOINT USE OF FACILITIES FOR DISTRICT SPONSORED PROGRAMS

	ADP2947.tmp
	JOINT USE OF DISTRICT PROPERTY FOR DISTRICT SPONSORED PROGRAMS

	ADP2950.tmp
	Rossmoor Community Services District
	Policy No. 6050
	FACILITIES – TENNIS COURTS
	Approved renumbering & format:  October 8, 2002

	ADP2981.tmp
	ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
	Policy No. 6050
	FACILITIES – TENNIS COURTS
	Approved renumbering & format:  October 8, 2002

	ADP2983.tmp
	ROSSMOOR COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
	Policy No. 6050
	FACILITIES – TENNIS COURTS
	Approved renumbering & format:  October 8, 2002




